
                                 AGENDA 
                                                                    

                                              LOS ANGELES REGIONAL  
                                       INTEROPERABLE COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM AUTHORITY 

 

  BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 
  Thursday, March 14, 2013  9:00 a.m. 

 

743 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 
500 West Temple St., Los Angeles, CA 90012 

 
   
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System Authority (the “Authority”) 
 
AGENDA POSTED:  March 12, 2013 
Complete agendas are made available for review at the designated meeting location during normal business hours and may also 
be accessible on the Authority’s website at http://www.la-rics.org. 

  

 Members: 

  1. William T Fujioka, Chair, CEO, County of Los Angeles 

2. Charles L. Beck, Vice Chair, Police Chief, City of Los Angeles 

3. Mark R. Alexander, City Manager, representing the California Contract Cities Association 

4. Leroy D. Baca, Sheriff, County of Los Angeles 

5. Reginald Harrison, Deputy City Manager, City of Long Beach 

6. LeRoy J. Jackson, City Manager, City of Torrance, representing At Large Seat 

7. Dr. Mitchell H. Katz, Director, DHS, County of Los Angeles 

8. Gerry F. Miller, Chief Legislative Analyst, City of Los Angeles 

9. Daryl L. Osby, Fire Chief, County of Los Angeles 

10. Brian Cummings, Fire Chief, City of Los Angeles 

11. Donald Pedersen, Police Chief, City of Culver City, representing At Large Seat 

12. Scott Pickwith, Police Chief, representing the Los Angeles County Police Chiefs Association 

13. Kim Raney, Police Chief, City of Covina, representing At Large Seat 

14. Timothy Scranton, Fire Chief, representing the Los Angeles Area Fire Chiefs Association 

15. Miguel Santana, CAO, City of Los Angeles 

16. Gregory L. Simay, Assistant General Manager, City of Burbank Water & Power, representing At Large Seat 

17. Steven K. Zipperman, Police Chief, Los Angeles School Police Department 

 

 Officers: 

  1. Patrick Mallon, Executive Director 

2. Wendy L. Watanabe, County of Los Angeles Auditor-Controller 

3. Mark J. Saladino, County of Los Angeles Treasurer and Tax Collector 

4. Patricia Saucedo, Board Secretary 
 



 
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System Authority 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

March 14, 2013   Page 2 

NOTE:  ACTION MAY BE TAKEN ON ANY ITEM IDENTIFIED ON THE AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ANNOUNCE QUORUM – Roll Call 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES (1) 

1. February 7, 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Attachment:  Item 1 

CONSENT CALENDAR – (None) 

REPORTS (2–6) 

2. Committee Reports 

a. Finance Committee – Stephen Sotomayor 

b. Legislative Committee – Chief Daryl Osby 

c. Operations Committee – No Report 

d. Technical Committee – No Report 

3. Director’s Report – Pat Mallon 

4. Project Manager’s Report – Pat Mallon 

Attachment:  Item 4 

5. Grant Status Report – Pat Mallon 

Attachment:  Item 5 

6. Independent Auditor’s Report FY 2011-12 – County of Los Angeles Auditor-Controller Staff – 
Rachelle Anema 

Attachment:  Item 6 
 



 
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System Authority 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

March 14, 2013   Page 3 

DISCUSSION ITEMS (7) 

7. Site Access Agreements – Pat Mallon 

Attachment:  Item 7 

8. FCC Public Notice Seeking Comment / T Band – Pat Mallon 

Attachment:  Item 8 

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS (9-11) 

9. Executive Director Contract – Chairman Bill Fujioka 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that your Board approve execution of Professional 
Services Agreement between the Authority and Patrick J. Mallon, dba O’Meallain, Ltd., to 
provide services as the LA-RICS Executive Director commencing May 1, 2013, continuing for 
a period of two years, with a not-to-exceed amount of $210,600 per year. 

Attachment:  Item 9 

10. Temporary Suspension of Section 3.01 of the Authority’s Bylaws & Extend the Term of At-
Large & Alternate Directors– Pat Mallon 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that your Board temporarily suspend Section 3.01 
of the Authority’s Bylaws and extend the term of the current At-Large Director and Alternate 
Director seats to April 3, 2014.  
 

Attachment:  Item 10 

11. LA-RICS Liability Coverage – Pat Mallon 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that your Board:  
 
a. Discuss the following liability coverage options for the LA-RICS Joint Powers Authority 

(JPA): 

i. Pooling of self-insured claims/losses program (Program) under the California 
Joint Powers Insurance Authority (CJPIA); and 

ii. Insurance coverage under Commercial General Liability (CGL), Professional 
Liability/Errors and Omissions/Directors and Officers (D&O) & Auto Liability 
(AL) policies; 

 
b. Provide direction to Authority Staff as to which option the Board would like to pursue 

and procure; and 
 

c. Delegate authority to the Executive Director to complete application(s) on behalf of the 
JPA to procure the selected liability coverage option, and procure the liability 



 
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System Authority 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

March 14, 2013   Page 4 

coverage at the limits specified by the Board with a not-to-exceed cost of $50,000 a 
year.   

 
Attachment:  Item 11 

MISCELLANEOUS – (None) 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

ITEMS FOR FUTURE DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION BY THE BOARD 

12. FirstNet Path Forward 

13. Project Funding 

14. Project Risk Controls 

ADJOURNMENT and NEXT MEETING: 

Thursday, April 4, 2013, at 9:00 a.m., at the Grace E. Simons Lodge. 



 
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System Authority 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

March 14, 2013   Page 5 

BOARD MEETING INFORMATION 
 

 
 

Members of the public are invited to address the LA-RICS Authority Board on any item on the agenda 
prior to action by the Board on that specific item.  Members of the public may also address the Board 
on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The Board will entertain such 
comments during the Public Comment period.  Public Comment will be limited to three (3) minutes per 
individual for each item addressed, unless there are more than ten (10) comment cards for each item, 
in which case the Public Comment will be limited to one (1) minute per individual.  The aforementioned 
limitation may be waived by the Board’s Chair. 
 
(NOTE:  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.3(b) the legislative body of a local agency may 
adopt reasonable regulations, including, but not limited to, regulations limiting the total amount of time 
allocated for public testimony on particular issues and for each individual speaker.) 
 
Members of the public who wish to address the Board are urged to complete a Speaker Card and 
submit it to the Board Secretary prior to commencement of the public meeting.  The cards are available 
in the meeting room.  However, should a member of the public feel the need to address a matter while 
the meeting is in progress, a card may be submitted to the Board Secretary prior to final consideration 
of the matter. 
 
It is requested that individuals who require the services of a translator contact the Board Secretary no 
later than the day preceding the meeting.  Whenever possible, a translator will be provided.  Sign 
language interpreters, assistive listening devices, or other auxiliary aids and/or services may be 
provided upon request. To ensure availability, you are advised to make your request at least 72 hours 
prior to the meeting you wish to attend. (323) 881-8291 or (323) 881-8295 
 
SI REQUIERE SERVICIOS DE TRADUCCION, FAVOR DE NOTIFICAR LA OFICINA CON  
72 HORAS POR ANTICIPADO. 
 
The meeting is recorded, and the recording is kept for 30 days. 
 

 

 

 

































































































































































































LA-RICS Board of Directors
March 14,2013
Page 3

package with GL, AL, POL (excluding Employee Benefits Liability and Employment Practices Liability) for
the following limits, is set forth below:

¡. $2Ml$2M in excess of a $25,000 SIR = Estimated premium of $100,000/year;
i¡. $5M/$5M in excess of a $25,000 SIR = Estimated premium of $150,000/year; or
i¡i. $10M/$10M in excess of a $25,000 SIR = Estimated premium of $175,000/year

The premiums listed above are only estimates, are subject to change, and may be high. Given that the
Authority has not prepared applications for insurance or submitted information about its lost history (it
does not have a lost history), it would take 45-90 days at a minimum with complete information provided
by the Authority, to receive a binding insurance quote.

The Authority also has the option of procuring insurance via a Standard lnsurance Deductible Policy.
The deductible applies only to D&O coverage, and can be set at $10,000, $15,000, $25,000, or $50,000.
No deductible would apply to the CGL or AL policies. The estimated premiums for a standard insurance
deductible policy in the following limits, is:

i. $1M occurrence/$1M aggregate: Estimated minimum premium of $50,000;
ii. $1M occurrence/$3M aggregate: Estimated minimum premium of $75,000; or
¡ii. $1M occurrence/$Sm aggregate: Estimated minimum premium of $100,000.

Again, the premiums listed above are only estimates, are subject to change, and may be high. lt would
take 45-90 days at a minimum with complete information provided by the Authority, to receive a binding
insurance quote.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

Option A: Application cost and membership balance remaining will be paid out of the Authority's
201212013 operating budget, Services and Supplies, with membership fees brought before your Board
for consideration and budgeted accordingly in subsequent fiscal years.

Option B: Policy cost will be paid out of the Authority's 201212013 operating budget, Services and
Supplies, with renewal fees brought before your Board for consideration and budgeted accordingly in
subseq uent fiscal years

FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENT

The Authority's counsel has reviewed the recommended actions.

Respectfully subm itted,

DIRECTOR

PJM:soc

c: Counsel to the Authority

PATRICK



  i  

 
Joint Powers Agreement

California Joint Powers Insurance Authority
Adopted August 12, 2011

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



  ii  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE 2 - PURPOSES .......................................................................................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE 3 - PARTIES TO AGREEMENT ............................................................................................................ 3 

ARTICLE 4 - TERM OF AGREEMENT ................................................................................................................. 4 

ARTICLE 5 - CREATION OF AUTHORITY ......................................................................................................... 4 

ARTICLE 6 - POWERS OF AUTHORITY ............................................................................................................. 4 

ARTICLE 7 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS ................................................................................................................. 5 

ARTICLE 8 - POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ............................................................................... 5 

ARTICLE 9 - MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ........................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE 10 - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE .......................................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE 11 - POWERS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ........................................................................ 6 

ARTICLE 12 - MEETINGS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE .................................................................... 7 

ARTICLE 13 - CLAIMS COMMITTEE .................................................................................................................. 8 

ARTICLE 14 - OFFICERS OF THE AUTHORITY ............................................................................................... 8 

ARTICLE 15 - ADVISORY COMMITTEES ........................................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE 16 - COVERAGE ...................................................................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE 17 - DEVELOPMENT OF THE JOINT PROTECTION PROGRAMS ............................................. 9 

ARTICLE 18 - ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS ...................................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE 19 - RESPONSIBILITY FOR MONIES .............................................................................................. 11 

ARTICLE 20 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUTHORITY ............................................................................ 11 

ARTICLE 21 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS ......................................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE 22 - NEW MEMBERS ............................................................................................................................ 13 

ARTICLE 23 - PROGRAM PARTICIPATION .................................................................................................... 13 

ARTICLE 24 - WITHDRAWAL ............................................................................................................................. 14 

ARTICLE 25 - EFFECT OF WITHDRAWAL ...................................................................................................... 14 

ARTICLE 26 - CANCELLATION OF PROGRAM PARTICIPATION ............................................................. 15 

ARTICLE 27 - CANCELLATION OF MEMBERSHIP ....................................................................................... 15 

ARTICLE 28 - CANCELLATION FOR NON-PAYMENT .................................................................................. 15 

ARTICLE 29 - ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS OF COLLECTION ............................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 30 - TERMINATION AND DISTRIBUTION ..................................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 31 - PROVISION FOR BYLAWS ......................................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE 32 - NOTICES ......................................................................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE 33 – PROVISION FOR MAILED BALLOTS ..................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE 34 - AMENDMENT ................................................................................................................................ 17 

ARTICLE 35 - PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSIGNMENT................................................................................. 18 

ARTICLE 36 - AGREEMENT COMPLETE ......................................................................................................... 18 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 1 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

 

CREATING THE CALIFORNIA 

JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY 

                                                                                                                      

 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and among the public entities 

organized and existing under the Constitution or laws of the State of California, hereinafter 

collectively referred to as "Members" and individually as "Member" which are parties signatory 

to this Agreement.  Said Members are sometimes referred to herein as "parties." 

 

RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 6500 et seq. provides that two or more 

public agencies may by agreement jointly exercise any power common to the contracting parties; 

and 

 WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.4 provides that a local public 

entity may self-insure, purchase insurance through an authorized carrier, or purchase insurance 

through a surplus line broker, or any combination of these; and  

 WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.8 provides that two or more local 

public entities may, by a joint powers agreement, provide insurance for any purpose by any one 

or more of the methods specified in Government Code Section 990.4; and 

 WHEREAS, each of the parties to this Agreement desires to join together with the other 

parties for the purpose of pooling their self-insured losses and jointly purchasing excess 

insurance and administrative services in connection with one or more joint protection programs 

for said parties; and 

 WHEREAS, it appears economically feasible and practical for the parties to this 

Agreement to do so;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of all of the mutual benefits, covenants 

and agreements contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 2 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS 

 The following definitions shall apply to the provisions of this Agreement: 

 (a) "Advisory Committee" shall mean the Managers Committee, Finance Officers 

Committee, and any other committee created by the Board of Directors or Executive Committee 

for the purpose of providing specialized advice to the Board of Directors or Executive 

Committee on the subject matter brought before it. 

(b) "Authority" shall mean the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority created 

by this Agreement. 

 (c) "Board of Directors" or "Board" shall mean the governing body of the Authority. 

 (d) "Chief Executive Officer" shall mean that employee of the Authority who is 

appointed by the Executive Committee, and is granted authority and responsibility for the 

management and administration of the Authority and its joint protection programs. 

 (e) "Claims" shall mean demands made against the Authority, a Member, or 

Members arising out of occurrences, which are within an Authority joint protection program as 

developed by the Executive Committee. 

 (f) "Deposit" shall mean an annual dollar amount determined by the Executive 

Committee, which is to be paid by the Member as its established share of funding required to 

cover the financial obligations of each joint protection program in which the member 

participates. 

 (g) "Director" shall mean that person selected by and from the legislative body of 

each Member to represent the Member on the Board of Directors pursuant to Article 7 of this 

Agreement. 

(h) "Executive Committee" shall mean the Executive Committee of the Board of 

Directors of the Authority. 

 (i) "Finance Officers Committee" shall mean the committee of the Authority 

composed of the Finance Directors or chief finance officers of the Members by whatever title 

locally designated. 

 (j) "Fiscal Year" shall mean that period of twelve months which is established as the 

fiscal year of the Authority. 

 (k) "Insurance" shall mean and include self-pooled insurance through a funded 

program and/or any commercial insurance, excess insurance, or re-insurance contract purchased 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 3 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

on behalf of the Authority to protect the funds of the Authority against catastrophes or an 

unusual frequency of losses during a specific coverage period. 

(l) "Managers Committee" shall mean the committee of the Authority composed of 

the City Managers, City Administrators, or chief executive officers of the Members by whatever 

title locally designated. 

 (m) "Secretary" shall mean the person selected by the Executive Committee from 

among its members to serve as Secretary of the Authority. 

 (n) "Treasurer" shall mean the person selected by the Executive Committee to serve 

as Treasurer of the Authority. 

ARTICLE 2 - PURPOSES 

 This agreement is entered into by the Members pursuant to the provisions of California 

Government Code Sections 990, 990.4, 990.8, and 6500 et seq. in order to provide more 

comprehensive and economical protection from financial loss, to reduce the amount and 

frequency of their losses, and to decrease the cost incurred in the handling and litigation of 

claims.  This purpose shall be accomplished through the exercise of the powers of the Members 

jointly in the creation of a separate entity, the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (the 

Authority), to administer joint protection programs wherein Members will pool their losses and 

claims, jointly purchase insurance and administrative and other services, including claims 

adjusting, data processing, risk management consulting, loss prevention, training, legal, and 

related services. 

 It is also the purpose of this Agreement to provide, to the extent permitted by law, for the 

inclusion at a subsequent date of such additional public entities organized and existing under the 

Constitution or laws of the State of California as may desire to become parties to this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 3 - PARTIES TO AGREEMENT 

 Each party to this Agreement certifies that it intends to and does contract with all other 

parties who are signatories of this Agreement and, in addition, with such other parties as may 

later be added as parties to and signatories of this Agreement pursuant to Article 22.  Each party 

to this Agreement also certifies that the deletion of any party from this Agreement, pursuant to 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 4 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

Articles 24, 26, 27, or 28 shall not affect this Agreement nor such party's intent to contract as 

described above with the other parties to the Agreement then remaining. 

ARTICLE 4 - TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement became effective on June 29, 1977 and shall continue until and unless 

terminated as hereinafter provided. 

ARTICLE 5 - CREATION OF AUTHORITY 

 Pursuant to Section 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code, there is hereby 

created a public entity separate and apart from the parties hereto, to be known as the California 

Joint Powers Insurance Authority .  Pursuant to Government Code Section 6508.1, the debts, 

liabilities and obligations of the Authority shall not constitute debts, liabilities or obligations of 

any party to this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6 - POWERS OF AUTHORITY 

 (a) The Authority shall have the powers common to its Members and is hereby 

authorized to do all acts necessary for the exercise of said common powers, including, but not 

limited to, any or all of the following: 

  1. To make and enter into contracts; 

  2. To incur debts, liabilities or obligations; 

  3. To acquire, hold or dispose of property, contributions and donations of 

property, funds, services and other forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations and 

governmental entities; 

  4. To sue and be sued in its own name; and  

  5. To exercise all powers necessary and proper to carry out the terms and 

provisions of this Agreement, or otherwise authorized by law. 

 (b) Said powers shall be exercised pursuant to the terms hereof and in the manner 

provided by law and are subject to the restrictions upon the manner of exercising the powers of 

the City of Lakewood. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 5 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

ARTICLE 7 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 (a) The Authority shall be governed by the Board of Directors which is hereby 

established and which shall be composed of one representative Director from each Member, who 

shall be selected from the legislative body of that Member by the process chosen by the Member. 

 (b) Each legislative body, in addition to appointing its Director of the Board, shall 

appoint at least one alternate who shall be an officer or employee of the Member.  The alternate 

shall have the authority to attend, participate in, and vote at any meeting of the Board when the 

regular Director for whom he or she is an alternate is absent from said meeting.  

ARTICLE 8 - POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 The Board of Directors of the Authority shall have the following powers and functions: 

 (a) The Board shall elect from its members pursuant to Article 10 of this Agreement 

an Executive Committee to which it may give authority to make and implement any decisions, 

including those involving the administration of the Authority, except those decisions that would 

require an amendment of this Agreement, under Article 34 herein. 

 (b) The Board may review all acts of the Executive Committee, including 

development of the memoranda of coverage and the operating budget, and shall have the power 

to modify and/or override any decision or action of the Executive Committee upon a majority 

vote of a quorum of the Board of Directors. 

 (c) The Board shall receive and review periodic accountings of all funds under 

Articles 18 and 19 of this Agreement. 

 (d) The Board shall have the power to conduct on behalf of the Authority all business 

of the Authority, including that assigned to the Executive Committee, which the Authority may 

conduct under the provisions hereof and pursuant to law. 

 (e) The Board shall have such other powers and functions as are provided for in this 

Agreement. 

 (f) The Board shall not have the power to overturn the decisions of the Claims 

Committee in regard to the settlement of claims. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 6 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

ARTICLE 9 - MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 (a) Meetings.  The Board shall provide for its regular, adjourned regular and special 

meetings; provided, however, that it shall hold at least one regular meeting annually at a time and 

place determined by the Executive Committee.  

 (b) Minutes.  The Secretary of the Authority shall cause minutes of regular, adjourned 

regular and special meetings to be kept and shall, as soon as possible after each meeting, cause a 

copy of the minutes to be forwarded to each member of the Board. 

 (c) Quorum.  A majority of the Directors of the Board shall constitute a quorum for 

the transaction of business, except that less than a quorum may adjourn from time to time.  A 

vote of the majority of those Directors present at a meeting shall be sufficient to constitute action 

by the Board. 

 (d) Compliance with the Brown Act.  All meetings of the Board, including, without 

limitation, regular, adjourned regular and special meetings, shall be called, noticed, held and 

conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government 

Code Section 54950  et seq. 

ARTICLE 10 - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 There shall be an Executive Committee of the Board of Directors which shall consist of 

nine (9) members, exclusive of any current Past President Ex Officio Executive Committee 

Member.  Two of the members of the Executive Committee shall be the President and Vice 

President of the Board of Directors.  The other members of the Executive Committee shall be 

elected by the Board of Directors at the Annual Meeting for the terms provided in the Bylaws.  

The President of the Authority, or the Vice President in his or her absence, shall serve as the 

Chairperson of the Executive Committee. 

ARTICLE 11 - POWERS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 The Executive Committee of the Board of Directors shall have the following powers: 

 (a) The Executive Committee shall determine and select joint protection programs for 

the Authority including adoption of language of the Memoranda of Coverage and any limitations 

or endorsements to such Memoranda. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 7 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

 (b) The Executive Committee shall determine and select all insurance necessary to 

carry out the joint protection programs of Authority. 

 (c) The Executive Committee shall have the authority to approve membership in the 

Authority and Member participation in one or more joint protection programs in accordance with 

Articles 22 and 23. 

 (d) The Executive Committee shall have the authority to cancel Member participation 

in one or more joint protection programs in accordance with Articles 26 and 28. 

 (e) The Executive Committee shall adopt the operating budget of the Authority. 

(f) The Executive Committee shall have authority to contract for or develop various 

services for the Authority, including, but not limited to, claims adjusting, loss control, and risk 

management consulting services.  

(g) The Executive Committee shall receive and act upon reports of the Advisory 

Committees and the Chief Executive Officer. 

 (h) The Executive Committee shall appoint the Treasurer and Chief Executive Officer 

of the Authority. 

 (i) The Executive Committee shall have the power to hire such persons as the 

Executive Committee deems necessary for the administration of the Authority.  

(j) The Executive Committee shall have the general supervisory and policy control 

over the day-to-day decisions and administrative activities of the Chief Executive Officer of the 

Authority. 

 (k) The Executive Committee shall have such other powers and functions as are 

provided for in this Agreement or as delegated by the Board of Directors, including the power to 

create committees it deems necessary.  

ARTICLE 12 - MEETINGS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 The meetings of the Executive Committee shall be held and conducted in the same 

manner as the meetings of the Board of Directors, provided for in Article 9 of this Agreement.  

In addition, the Committee shall make periodic reports to the Board of Directors, advising the 

Board of its decisions and activities concerning the implementation of the joint protection 

programs of the Authority. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 8 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

ARTICLE 13 - CLAIMS COMMITTEE 

The Executive Committee members, together with the Chairs of the Managers Committee 

and the Finance Officers Committee, shall sit as the Claims Committee of the Authority.  The 

Claims Committee shall have authority to make all determinations regarding defense, indemnity, 

and settlement of claims under the Memoranda of Coverage.  Decisions of the Claims 

Committee regarding settlement of claims shall be final and not subject to further review.  

Decisions regarding coverage for defense or indemnity of claims shall be final, but subject to the 

Member’s appeal rights as detailed in the applicable Memorandum of Coverage.  

ARTICLE 14 - OFFICERS OF THE AUTHORITY 

 (a) President and Vice President.  The Board shall elect a President and Vice 

President of the Authority, each to hold office for a two-year term, except as hereinafter 

provided, and until a successor is elected.  The election of the President and Vice President shall 

be on alternate years.  In the event the President or Vice President so elected ceases to be a 

member of the Board, or for other reasons is unable to serve, the resulting vacancy in the office 

of President or Vice President shall be filled at the next meeting of the Board held after such 

vacancy occurs.  In the absence or inability of the President to act, the Vice President shall act as 

President.  The immediate Past President shall serve as an ex officio, non-voting member of the 

Executive Committee for a term of two years, and as long as he or she remains a member of the 

Board of Directors. 

 (b) Chief Executive Officer.  The Chief Executive Officer shall be authorized and 

responsible for the overall management and administration of the Authority and its joint 

protection programs and shall select and appoint all employees. 

 (c) Secretary.  The Secretary shall be responsible for all minutes, notices and records 

of the Authority and shall perform such other duties as may be assigned by the Executive 

Committee. 

 (d) Treasurer.  The duties of the Treasurer are set forth in Articles 18 and 19 of this 

Agreement. 

 (e) Attorney.  The Executive Committee shall select an attorney for the Authority.  

The attorney shall serve at the pleasure of the Executive Committee.  

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 9 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

 (f) The Executive Committee shall have the power to appoint such other officers as 

may be necessary in order to carry out the purposes of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 15 - ADVISORY COMMITTEES 

The Board of Directors or Executive Committee may establish Advisory Committees as deemed 

necessary.  Such Committees shall meet from time to time as deemed necessary by them, and 

shall make recommendations to the Executive Committee based upon their expertise. 

ARTICLE 16 - COVERAGE 

 (a) The coverage provided for Members through the Authority’s joint protection 

programs may include protection for Personal Injury, Errors and Omissions, Contractual and 

Comprehensive Liability, Workers’ Compensation and such other areas of coverage as the 

Executive Committee may determine.  Such coverage may be through insurance as defined in 

Article 1. 

 (b) The Authority shall maintain limits of coverage for Members determined by the 

Executive Committee to be adequate.  The Executive Committee may arrange for a group policy 

to be issued for Members interested in obtaining additional coverage above the limits of 

coverage at an additional cost to those participating Members. 

 (c) The Executive Committee shall arrange for the purchase of insurance it deems 

necessary to protect the funds of the Authority against catastrophes.  The Executive Committee 

shall have the authority to discontinue purchase of this insurance, if at a future time the 

Executive Committee determines that it is no longer needed to protect the Authority's funds. 

ARTICLE 17 - DEVELOPMENT OF THE JOINT PROTECTION PROGRAMS 

 (a) The joint protection programs provided by the Authority shall extend to agencies 

or authorities as determined in the Memoranda of Coverage. 

 (b) The cost allocation formula for each joint protection program shall be adopted by 

the Executive Committee. 

(c) The deposit for each Member’s participation in a joint protection program shall be 

determined by the Executive Committee. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 10 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

  (d) The cost allocation formula adopted by the Executive Committee for each joint 

protection program may provide for retrospective deposit adjustments, and each Member shall 

pay any additional deposit required by such retrospective adjustment.                                                                      

 (e) The Executive Committee may provide for payment of a portion of such deposits 

to be made over a period of time on terms set by the Executive Committee. 

 (f) The Executive Committee may expand the Authority's offerings of joint 

protection programs to make available for Members’ protection in addition to that which is 

provided for in this Agreement. 

 (g) Deposits held by the Authority for each joint protection program shall be 

accounted for separately, so that only Members participating in the program will share in pooled 

losses and expenses of that program.  This separate accounting shall not prohibit the Authority 

from commingling deposits for purposes of investment, nor from paying losses or expenses when 

due from all available funds. 

ARTICLE 18 - ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS 

 (a) Budget.  The Authority shall adopt an operating budget, pursuant to Article 11(e) 

of this Agreement. 

 (b) Funds and Accounts.  The Treasurer of the Authority shall establish and maintain 

such funds and accounts as may be required by good accounting practice or by the Executive 

Committee.  Books and records of the Authority in the hands of the Treasurer shall be open to 

any inspection at all reasonable times by representatives of a Member. 

 (c) Treasurer's Report.  The Treasurer, within 270 days after the close of each fiscal 

year, shall give a complete written report of all financial activities for such fiscal year to the 

Board and to each Member. 

 (d) Annual Audit.  The Executive Committee shall provide for a certified, annual 

audit of the accounts and records of the Authority which audit shall conform to generally 

accepted auditing standards.  When such an audit of the accounts and records is made by a 

Certified Public Accountant, a report thereof shall be filed as a public record with each of the 

Members.  Such report shall be filed within nine months of the end of the year under 

examination. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 11 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

 (e) Costs.  Any costs of the audit, including contracts with, or employment of, 

Certified Public Accountants, in making an audit pursuant to this Article, shall be borne by the 

Authority and shall be considered included within the term "administrative costs." 

ARTICLE 19 - RESPONSIBILITY FOR MONIES 

 (a) The Treasurer of the Authority shall have the custody of and disburse the 

Authority's funds.  He or she shall have the authority to delegate the signatory function of 

Treasurer to such persons as are authorized by the Executive Committee. 

 (b) A bond in the amount determined by the Executive Committee to be adequate 

shall be required of all officers and personnel authorized to disburse funds of the Authority, such 

bond to be paid for by the Authority. 

 (c) The Treasurer of the Authority shall perform the duties described in California 

Government Code Sections 6505.5 and 6505.6 pertaining to the receipt, safekeeping, payment, 

and reporting of Authority funds. 

ARTICLE 20 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUTHORITY 

 The Authority shall perform the following functions in discharging its responsibilities 

under this Agreement: 

  (a) Provide loss protection as necessary, through various means including but not 

limited to insurance or other financial risk transfer, by negotiation or bid and purchase. 

 (b) Assist Members in obtaining coverage for risks not included within the joint 

protection programs of the Authority. 

 (c) Assist each Member’s assigned risk manager with the implementation of that 

function within the Member. 

 (d) Provide loss prevention and safety and consulting services to Members as 

required. 

 (e) Provide claims adjusting and subrogation services for claims covered by the 

Authority's joint protection programs. 

 (f) Provide loss control and analysis by the use of statistical analysis, data processing, 

and record and file keeping services, in order to identify high exposure operations and to 

evaluate proper levels of self-retention and deductibles. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 12 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

 (g) Provide contract review when requested by Members to determine sufficiency of 

indemnity and insurance provisions. 

 (h) Conduct risk management evaluations of each Member to encourage 

implementation of best risk management practices. 

 (i) The Authority shall have standing and shall pursue recovery in its own name or in 

the name of a Member for losses covered by a joint protection program.  Such recovery may be 

through subrogation, cross complaint, or salvage, as appropriate. 

 (j) The Authority shall have such other responsibilities as deemed necessary by the 

Board of Directors or Executive Committee in order to carry out the purposes of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 21 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS 

 Members shall have the following responsibilities: 

 (a) The legislative body of each Member shall appoint a representative and at least 

one alternate representative to the Board of Directors, pursuant to Article 7 of this Agreement. 

 (b) Each Member shall appoint an employee to be responsible for the risk 

management function of that Member, and to serve as a liaison between the Member and the 

Authority as to risk management. 

 (c) Each Member shall maintain an active safety officer and/or committee, and shall 

consider all recommendations of the Authority concerning unsafe practices or exposures. 

 (d) Each Member shall pay its deposit and any readjusted amount promptly to the 

Authority when due.  After withdrawal or termination, each Member shall pay promptly to the 

Authority its share of any additional deposit, when and if required of it by the Executive 

Committee under Articles 24, 25, 26, 27, and 28 of this Agreement. 

 (e) Each Member shall report all claims to the Authority in accordance with the 

policies and procedures governing the joint protection program to which the claim applies. 

(f) Each Member shall provide the Authority with such other information or 

assistance as may be necessary for the Authority to carry out the joint protection programs under 

this Agreement. 

 (g) Each Member shall cooperate with and assist the Authority in the pursuit of 

recoveries for losses covered by a joint protection program, including assigning its right to 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 13 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

recover subrogated amounts, and if necessary, executing a written agreement to effect such 

assignment.  

(h) Each Member shall in any and all ways cooperate with and assist the Authority, 

and any insurer of a joint protection program, in all matters relating to this Agreement and 

covered losses, and will comply with all bylaws, rules and regulations adopted by the Board of 

Directors and Executive Committee. 

(i) Each Member shall actively participate in the Authority’s Risk Management 

Evaluation and Loss Control Action Plan (LossCAP) programs. 

ARTICLE 22 - NEW MEMBERS 

 The Authority shall allow entry of new Members approved by the Executive Committee.  

Executive Committee approval for new Members shall be according to the following procedure: 

(1) investigation of each potential member by Authority staff and preparation of a report; (2) 

review of the report by the Underwriting Committee, which shall then be forwarded to all 

Directors for review and comment; (3) review by the Directors and submittal of comments to the 

Chief Executive Officer during the comment period; (4) approval by a two-thirds vote of the 

Executive Committee; (5) Membership is effective immediately upon approval by the Executive 

Committee and execution of an agreement by the new Member to join the Authority.  

A Member entering under this Article may be required to pay its share of organization 

expenses as determined by the Executive Committee including those necessary to analyze their 

loss data and determine their deposits. 

 Should the Board of Directors rescind the membership approval made by the Executive 

Committee pursuant to Article 8(b), the Member shall be given at least ninety days advance 

notice of the effective date of termination of Membership, and the Member shall be treated as if 

it had withdrawn on the effective date, and shall have the same responsibilities as if the Member 

had voluntarily withdrawn on the effective date. 

ARTICLE 23 - PROGRAM PARTICIPATION 

 The Authority shall allow for the participation of Members in the joint protection 

programs as approved by the Executive Committee.  Executive Committee approval for new 

Members shall be according to the following procedure: (1) investigation of a potential 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 14 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

participant by Authority staff and preparation of a report; (2) consideration of the report by the 

Underwriting Committee with a recommendation to the Executive Committee, (3) approval by a 

two-thirds vote of the Executive Committee; (4) program participation is effective immediately 

upon approval by the Executive Committee and execution of appropriate resolutions and/or other 

documents by the new participant allowing participation in the joint protection program.  

A Member entering into a joint protection program may be required to pay its share of 

program development expenses as determined by the Executive Committee including those 

necessary to analyze their loss data and determine their deposits. 

 Should the Board of Directors rescind the program participation approval made by the 

Executive Committee pursuant to Article 8(b), the Member shall be given at least ninety days 

advance notice of the effective date of termination of program participation, and the Member 

shall be treated as if it had withdrawn on the effective date, and shall have the same 

responsibilities as if the Member had voluntarily withdrawn on the effective date. 

ARTICLE 24 - WITHDRAWAL 

 (a) A Member which enters into this Agreement may not withdraw as a party to this 

Agreement and as a Member of the Authority for a one-year period commencing on the effective 

date of its membership. 

 (b) A Member which enters into a joint protection program may not withdraw as a 

participant in that program for a one-year period commencing on the effective date of its 

participation in the joint protection program. 

 (c) After the initial one-year non-cancellable commitment to membership in the 

Authority or participation in a joint protection program, a Member may withdraw only at the end 

of any protection period, provided it has given the Authority a twelve-month written notice of its 

intent to withdraw from this Agreement and/or any joint protection programs in which it 

participates.   

ARTICLE 25 - EFFECT OF WITHDRAWAL 

 (a) The withdrawal of any Member from this Agreement shall not terminate the 

Agreement, and no Member by withdrawing shall be entitled to payment or return of any 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 15 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

deposits, consideration or property paid, or donated by the Member to the Authority, or to any 

distribution of assets. 

 (b) The withdrawal of any Member from participation in a joint protection program 

shall not terminate the Member’s responsibility to contribute its share of deposits or funds to the 

program until all claims, or other unpaid liabilities, covering the period the Member was 

signatory hereto have been finally resolved and a determination of the final amount of payments 

due from the Member or credits to the Member for the period of its participation has been made 

by the Executive Committee.  In connection with this determination, the Executive Committee 

may exercise similar powers to those provided for in the Article 30(c) of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 26 - CANCELLATION OF PROGRAM PARTICIPATION 

The Executive Committee shall have the right to cancel any Member’s participation in one or 

more joint protection programs upon the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer and in 

accordance with the Healthy Members Practices and Procedures protocol.  Any Member so 

cancelled shall on the effective date of the cancellation be treated the same and shall have the 

same responsibilities as if the Member had voluntarily withdrawn from the joint protection 

program.   

ARTICLE 27 - CANCELLATION OF MEMBERSHIP 

The Board of Directors shall have the right to cancel the membership of any Member 

based upon a three-fourths vote of the entire Board of Directors.  Any Member so cancelled shall 

on the effective date of the cancellation be treated the same as if the Member had voluntarily 

withdrawn from membership, and said Member shall have the same responsibilities.  

Cancellation, as specified above, shall be within the sole discretion of the Board of Directors and 

may occur with or without cause, and the Board's discretion shall not be subject to any further 

review or appeal. 

ARTICLE 28 - CANCELLATION FOR NON-PAYMENT 

In the absence of a payment plan as authorized in Article 17(e), any Member’s 

participation in a joint protection program may be cancelled automatically in the event of a 

failure of the Member to pay any deposit amount as required in this Agreement.  Should any 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 16 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

deposit amount remain unpaid more than thirty (30) days after receipt of notice by the Member, 

the Authority will send a notice advising the Member that it is in default under the terms of this 

Agreement, and that the Member’s participation will be cancelled within thirty (30) additional 

days unless full payment is received.  Failure to make full payment as required in the notice of 

default shall be considered a withdrawal by the Member from the program effective on the date 

of cancellation specified in the notice of default; and no coverage shall apply to any claims 

submitted subsequent to the effective date of cancellation that arise from occurrences taking 

place during the current program year.  A Member cancelled for non-payment shall remain liable 

for a prorated share of the current year’s deposits and for all readjusted or retrospective deposit 

amounts through the date of cancellation and attributable to prior years of coverage in which it 

participated.  

ARTICLE 29 - ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS OF COLLECTION 

 Should any Member or former Member fail to pay any deposit, readjusted deposit, or 

retrospective deposit when due, the Member shall also be liable to the Authority for attorney fees 

and costs incurred by the Authority in pursuing collection of such sums. 

ARTICLE 30 - TERMINATION AND DISTRIBUTION 

 (a) This Agreement may be terminated by the written consent of three-fourths of the 

Members; provided, however, that this Agreement and the Authority shall continue to exist for 

the purpose of disposing of all claims, distribution of assets and all other functions necessary to 

wind up the affairs of the Authority. 

 (b) Upon termination of this Agreement, all assets of the Authority shall be 

distributed only among the parties that have been Members of a joint protection program, 

including any of those parties which previously withdrew pursuant to Article 24 of this 

Agreement, in accordance with and proportionate to their cash (including deposits) payments and 

property (at market value when received) contributions made reduced by their share of losses and 

expenses paid during the term of this Agreement.  The Executive Committee shall determine 

such distribution within six months after the last pending claim or loss covered by this 

Agreement has been finally disposed of. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 17 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

 (c) The Executive Committee is vested with all powers of the Authority for the 

purpose of winding up and dissolving the business affairs of the Authority.  These powers shall 

include the power to require Members, including those which were Members at the time a claim 

arose or at the time a loss was incurred, to pay their share of any additional amount of deposit 

deemed necessary by the Executive Committee for final disposition of all claims and losses 

covered by this Agreement.  A Member’s share of such additional deposits shall be determined 

on the same basis as that provided for annual deposits in Article 17 of this Agreement, and shall 

be treated as if it were the next year's annual deposit for that Member. 

 (d) In the absence of an Executive Committee, the Secretary shall exercise all powers 

and authority under this Article.  The decision of the Executive Committee or Secretary under 

this Article shall be final. 

ARTICLE 31 - PROVISION FOR BYLAWS 

 The Board shall cause to be developed Authority Bylaws.  Each Member shall receive a 

copy of any Bylaws developed under this Article. 

ARTICLE 32 - NOTICES 

 Notices to Members hereunder shall be sufficient if delivered to the administrative office 

of the respective Member.  Delivery may be by U.S. Mail, email or other form of notice 

acceptable under the Ralph M. Brown Act.  

ARTICLE 33 – PROVISION FOR MAILED BALLOTS 

 Unless specifically prohibited elsewhere within this Agreement or the Bylaws, all actions 

contemplated by the Board of Directors may be voted on by mailed ballot as defined in the 

Bylaws.  This shall not include the election of officers or members of the Executive Committee.  

Actions taken by mailed ballot shall require the same percentage of votes cast by the entire 

Board of Directors as the percentage that would be required of a quorum voting on an item at a 

Board of Directors meeting. 

ARTICLE 34 - AMENDMENT 

 With the exception of Article 27, this agreement may be amended by a two-thirds vote of 

the Directors present at a duly held Board of Directors meeting, or by a two-thirds vote of the 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Joint Powers Agreement Page 18 of 18 Adopted August 12, 2011 
 
 

entire Board of Directors for an amendment placed before the Membership by mailed ballot.  

Amendment to Article 27 shall require a three-fourths vote of the entire Board of Directors, 

whether at a meeting or by mailed ballot. 

ARTICLE 35 - PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSIGNMENT 

 With the exception of Article 21 (g), no Member may assign any right, claim or interest it 

may have under this Agreement, and no creditor, assignee or third party beneficiary of any 

Member shall have any right, claim or title to any part, share, interest, fund, deposit or asset of 

the Authority.  

ARTICLE 36 - AGREEMENT COMPLETE 

 The foregoing constitutes the full and complete Agreement of the parties.  There are no 

oral understandings or agreements not set forth in writing herein. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have first executed this Agreement by 

authorized officials thereof on the date indicated below. 

 

 

Date:   

 

MEMBER:  

 

By:   

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 1 of 14 Adopted July 16, 2008 
 

 
Bylaws

California Joint Powers Insurance Authority
Adopted July 21, 2010

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



ii 
 

BYLAWS 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

ARTICLE I – OFFICES .............................................................................................................. 1 

Section 1.  Principal Executive Office. ________________________________________________ 1 

Section 2.  Other Offices. __________________________________________________________ 1 

ARTICLE II - BOARD OF DIRECTORS ................................................................................. 1 

Section 1.  Composition and Selection. _______________________________________________ 1 

Section 2.   Vacancies. _____________________________________________________________ 1 

Section 3.  Annual Meeting. ________________________________________________________ 2 

Section 4.  Special Meetings. _______________________________________________________ 2 

Section 5.  Place of Meetings. _______________________________________________________ 3 

Section 6.  Quorum. ______________________________________________________________ 3 

Section 7.  Adjourned Meetings. ____________________________________________________ 3 

Section 8.  Voting. _______________________________________________________________ 3 

Section 9.  Inspectors of Election. ___________________________________________________ 4 

ARTICLE III - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ........................................................................... 5 

Section 1.  Number of Members. ____________________________________________________ 5 

Section 2. Composition, Selection and Term of Office. __________________________________ 5 

Section 3.  Vacancies. _____________________________________________________________ 5 

Section 4.  Resignation. ___________________________________________________________ 6 

Section 5.  Removal of Executive Committee or its Individual Members by Board of Directors. ___ 6 

Section 6.  Regular Meetings. _______________________________________________________ 7 

Section 7.  Special Meetings. _______________________________________________________ 7 

Section 8.  Actions at Meetings. _____________________________________________________ 7 

Section 9.  Adjourned Meetings. ____________________________________________________ 8 

ARTICLE IV – CLAIMS COMMITTEE .................................................................................. 8 

Section 1.  Composition. ___________________________________________________________ 8 

Section 2.  Meetings.______________________________________________________________ 8 

ARTICLE V - ADVISORY COMMITTEES ............................................................................. 9 

Section 1.  Managers Committee. ____________________________________________________ 9 

Section 2.  Finance Officers Committee. ______________________________________________ 9 

Section 3.  Underwriting Committee. _________________________________________________ 9 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



iii 
 

Section 4.  Other Committees _______________________________________________________ 9 

Section 5.  Meetings.______________________________________________________________ 9 

ARTICLE VI - OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES.................................................................... 10 

Section 1.  Officers. _____________________________________________________________ 10 

Section 2.  Election and Term of Office. _____________________________________________ 10 

Section 3.  Other Officers and Employees. ____________________________________________ 10 

Section 4.  Vacancies. ____________________________________________________________ 10 

Section 5.  Removal and Resignation. _______________________________________________ 10 

Section 6.  President._____________________________________________________________ 11 

Section 7.  Vice President. ________________________________________________________ 11 

Section 8.  Secretary. ____________________________________________________________ 11 

Section 9.  Treasurer. ____________________________________________________________ 11 

Section 10.  Chief Executive Officer _________________________________________________ 12 

ARTICLE VII - MISCELLANEOUS ....................................................................................... 12 

Section 1.  Rules and Regulations of Joint Protection Programs. ___________________________ 12 

Section 2.  Annual Report. ________________________________________________________ 12 

Section 3.  Defense of Agents of the Authority. ________________________________________ 12 

Section 4.  Inspection of Authority Records. __________________________________________ 12 

Section 5.  Checks and Drafts. _____________________________________________________ 13 

Section 6.  Register of Demands. ___________________________________________________ 13 

Section 7.  Execution of Contracts. __________________________________________________ 13 

Section 8.  Rules of Procedure for Meetings. __________________________________________ 13 

ARTICLE VIII - AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS .................................................................. 14 

Section 1.  Power of Board of Directors. _____________________________________________ 14 

Section 2.  Power of Executive Committee. ___________________________________________ 14 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 1 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

BYLAWS 
 

FOR THE REGULATION, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED BY 
STATUTE, OR THE AGREEMENT CREATING THE AUTHORITY, OF THE 
CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY 

ARTICLE I – OFFICES 

 Section 1. Principal Executive Office. 

 The principal executive office for the transaction of the business of the Authority is 
hereby fixed and located at 8081 Moody Street, La Palma, California 90623.  The Executive 
Committee of the Authority shall have the authority to change the location of the principal 
executive office from time to time.  Any such change shall be noted on the Bylaws by the 
Secretary, opposite this section, or this section may be amended to state the new location. 
 

 Section 2. Other Offices.  

  Other business offices may at any time be established by the Executive Committee at 
any place or places where the Authority is qualified to do business. 

ARTICLE II - BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 Section 1. Composition and Selection.   

 The Board of Directors shall be composed of one Director from each Member of the 
Authority, who shall be a member of and selected by the legislative body of that Member, as 
provided for in the Agreement creating the Authority.  Each legislative body shall also appoint at 
least one alternate, who shall be an officer or employee of that Member.  The alternate may 
attend meetings and vote in the absence of the Director.  One person may be duly appointed by 
more than one Member as the Director representing those Members.  "Absence," as the term is 
used in this section, includes "vacancy" as defined in Section 2 of this Article II.  “Director” as 
the term is used in these Bylaws includes an “alternate” serving in the absence of the Director. 
 
 If a Member's membership in the Authority is terminated for whatever reason and by 
whatever method, that Member shall no longer have a representative on the Board of Directors, 
Executive Committee, or any other Committee of the Authority. 
 

 Section 2.  Vacancies.   

 A vacancy or vacancies on the Board of Directors shall be deemed to exist in case of 
death, resignation, expiration of term, removal by the Member that made the appointment, or 
when the Director ceases to be a member of the legislative body of the appointing Member.  
Vacancies in the positions of Director or alternate or alternates shall be filled in the manner 
provided for regular appointment of such persons in the Agreement creating the Authority and 
the Bylaws. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 2 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

 Section 3. Annual Meeting. 

  (a) Time Held and Business to be Transacted. 
 
   The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held in July of each 
year or at such other time as may be designated by the Executive Committee.  At such meeting 
the President and Vice President of the Authority and other members of the Executive 
Committee shall be elected as provided in Article III, reports of the affairs of the Authority shall 
be considered, and any other business may be transacted which is within the powers of the Board 
of Directors. 
 
  (b) Notice. 
 
   Written notice of each annual meeting shall be given to each Member of 
the Authority by mail, email, or other means of written communication, in the manner provided 
by the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code Section 54950, et seq.  Such notice 
shall specify: 
 
  (1) the place, the date, and the hour of such meeting; 
 
  (2) those matters which are intended to be presented for action or review by 
the Board of Directors; 
 
  (3) if officers and members of the Executive Committee are to be elected, the 
names of nominees intended at the time of the notice to be presented for election; 
 
  (4) the general nature of any proposal to be presented for action with respect 
to approval of (i) a new Member, (ii) a contract or other transaction of the Authority with an 
interested Member, (iii) amendment of the Agreement creating the Authority, (iv) the 
cancellation of a Member's participation in a joint protection program, (v) voluntary termination 
of the Agreement creating the Authority, or (vi) a distribution of program assets upon program 
dissolution; and 
 
  (5) such other matters, if any, as may be expressly required by statute or by 
the Agreement creating the Authority. 
 

 Section 4. Special Meetings. 

 Special meetings of the Board of Directors, for the purpose of taking any action permitted 
by statute and the Agreement creating the Authority, may be called at any time by the President, 
or by the Vice President in the absence or disability of the President, or by the Executive 
Committee of the Authority or by not less than ten (10) Members.  Upon request in writing that a 
special meeting of the Board of Directors be called for any proper purpose, directed to the 
President, Vice President, or Secretary of the Authority, by any person or persons entitled to call 
a special meeting of the Board of Directors, the officer receiving such request forthwith shall 
cause notice to be given to the Members that a meeting will be held at a time requested by the 
person or persons calling the meeting, not less than fifteen (15) nor more than sixty (60) days 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 3 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

after receipt of the request.  Notice of any special meeting shall be given in compliance with the 
Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code Section 54950, et seq.  Such notice shall 
specify the place, date and hour of such meeting, and, if applicable, the names of nominees for 
officers or members of the Executive Committee intended at the time of the notice to be 
presented for election and the nature of the business to be transacted.  No business other than that 
specified in the notice of the special meeting may be transacted at that meeting. 
 

 Section 5. Place of Meetings.   

 All annual or other meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at a place within the 
State of California designated by the Executive Committee by resolution. 
 

 Section 6. Quorum.  

 At any meeting, the presence in person or by approved teleconference by the 
Director or alternate of a majority of the Members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction 
of business.   
 

 Section 7. Adjourned Meetings. 

  (a) Adjournment. 
 
  Any meeting of the Board of Directors may be adjourned from time to time by the 
vote of a majority of the Directors present.  
 
  (b) Notice. 
 
  When any meeting of the Board of Directors is adjourned for forty-five (45) days 
or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting.  
Except as specifically provided herein, or by the Ralph M. Brown Act, it shall not be necessary 
to give any notice of the time and place of the adjourned meeting or of the business to be 
transacted thereat, other than by announcement of the time and place thereof at the meeting at 
which such adjournment is taken. 
 

 Section 8. Voting.  

(a) Voting at a Meeting 
 
  Unless a record date for voting purposes is fixed by the Executive Committee, 
Members which are Members on the day of the meeting of the Board of Directors shall be 
entitled to vote at such meeting.  Such vote may be by voice vote or ballot; provided, however, 
that all elections for officers or members of the Executive Committee must be by ballot upon 
demand made by a Director at any election and before the voting begins.  If a quorum is present, 
the affirmative vote of the majority of the Members represented at the meeting shall be the act of 
the Board, unless the vote of a greater number is required by the Agreement creating the 
Authority or by statute.  A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 4 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of Directors, provided that any action taken is 
approved by a number of Directors at least equal to a majority (or greater number if required) of 
the number required for a quorum for such meeting.  Every Member shall have one vote to be 
exercised by its Director.  If one person has been duly appointed by more than one Member as 
the Director representing those Members, said person shall have the right to cast votes equal to 
the number Members for which he or she has been appointed as Director.   
 
  Ballots shall have imprinted on them, the name of the Member on whose behalf a 
ballot is cast.  Ballots shall be open to inspection and public disclosure.  A Director has the right 
to change his or her vote up to the time the vote is finally announced and thereafter only with 
permission of the Board of Directors prior to adjournment.  No Director may change his or her 
vote, nor may anyone challenge the vote of any Director after the results have been announced, 
except by the consent of the Board of Directors, and then only prior to adjournment of the 
meeting at which the vote was cast.  Written proxies or powers of attorney casting the vote for 
any Director, directing any Director to vote in a particular fashion, or acting in the place and 
stead of any Director, are not acceptable.  The vote of each Director or his or her alternate shall 
not be challenged on the basis that said Director or alternate voted contrary to the express will of 
the legislative body of the Member for which he or she acts. 
 
  (b) Voting by Mailed Ballot 
 
  For issues for which it is deemed appropriate, action may be taken by the Board 
of Directors by the casting of mailed ballots.  Mailed ballots may be in the form of hard copy or 
electronic ballot transmitted by U.S. Mail, email, or other physical or electronic method deemed 
secure by the Executive Committee.  Mailed ballots may be cast only by the Director or his or 
her alternate. 
   

 Section 9. Inspectors of Election. 

  (a) Appointment. 
 
  In advance of any meeting of the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee 
may appoint any persons, other than nominees for office, as inspectors of election to act at such 
meeting or any adjournment thereof.  If inspectors of election are not so appointed, the President, 
or Vice President in his or her absence, may, and on the request of any Director or alternate, shall 
make such appointment at the meeting.  The number of inspectors shall be either one (1) or three 
(3), at least one of whom shall be a member of the Board of Directors.  In case any person 
appointed as inspector fails to appear or fails or refuses to act, the vacancy may, and on the 
request of any Director, shall be filled by appointment by the Executive Committee in advance of 
the meeting, or at the meeting by the President, or the Vice President in his or her absence. 
 
  (b) Duties. 
 
  The duties of such inspectors shall include:  Determining the current number of 
Members, the Members represented at the meeting, and the existence of a quorum; receiving 
votes, ballots or consents; hearing and determining all challenges and questions in any way 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 5 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

arising in connection with the right to vote; counting and tabulating all votes or consents; 
determining when the polls shall close; determining the result; and such acts as may be proper to 
conduct the election or vote with fairness to all Members. 
 
  (c) Procedure. 
 
  The inspectors of election shall perform their duties impartially, in good faith, to 
the best of their ability and as expeditiously as is practical.  The decision, act or certificate of a 
majority of the inspectors shall be effective in all respects as the decision, act or certificate of all.  
Any report or certificate made by the inspectors of election is prima facie evidence of the facts 
stated therein. 

ARTICLE III - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 Section 1. Number of Members.   

The authorized number of members of the Executive Committee shall be nine (9), until 
and unless changed by amendment of this Section, duly adopted by the vote or written consent of 
a majority of the Board of Directors, and subject to the limitations in the Agreement creating the 
Authority. 
 

 Section 2. Composition, Selection and Term of Office.   

The Executive Committee shall consist of the President, Vice President and seven other 
members elected by the Board of Directors from the members of the Board.  In addition, the 
Immediate Past President shall serve as an ex officio non-voting member of the Executive 
Committee for two years, provided the Immediate Past President's membership on the Board of 
Directors continues without interruption. 
 
  The terms of office of the Executive Committee members shall be for a term of two 
years or until he or she resigns or is removed or otherwise disqualified to serve.  Members of the 
Executive Committee shall hold office until their successors are elected. 
 
 The President, or in his or her absence, the Vice President, shall serve as Chairperson of 
the Executive Committee. 
 

 Section 3. Vacancies. 

  (a) Creation of Vacancies. 
 
   A vacancy or vacancies in the Executive Committee shall be deemed to 
exist in case of the death, resignation, expiration of term, termination of membership on the 
Board of Directors, removal of any Executive Committee member by the Board of Directors, 
declaration of unsound mind by order of court, conviction of a felony, increase in the authorized 
number of members by amendment of the Agreement creating the Authority, or if the Board of 
Directors fail, at any annual or special meeting of the Board at which any members of the 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 6 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

Executive Committee are elected, to elect the full authorized number of Executive Committee 
members to be voted for at that meeting.  A vacancy in the Executive Committee may further be 
created by removal of any member by the Executive Committee when such member has been 
absent from two or more regular meetings of the Executive Committee without advance excuse 
approved by the Executive Committee during any one year (from July 1 to June 30), and the 
Executive Committee determines, after reviewing the circumstances of said absences, that such 
member should be removed. 
 
  (b) Vacancies Filled by Executive Committee. 
 
  Vacancies in the Executive Committee, except for a vacancy created by the 
removal of an Executive Committee member, may be filled by appointment by a majority of the 
remaining members of the Executive Committee, though less than a quorum, or by a sole 
remaining member of the Executive Committee, and each member so appointed shall hold office 
until the expiration of the term of the vacated seat. 
 
  (c) Vacancies Filled by Board of Directors. 
 
  The Board of Directors may elect a member of the Executive Committee at any 
time to fill any vacancy or vacancies or seat filled on an interim basis by the Executive 
Committee.  A vacancy in the Executive Committee created by the removal of a member by the 
Board of Directors may be filled only by the vote of a majority of the Directors present at a duly 
held meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 

 Section 4. Resignation.   

Any Executive Committee member may resign effective upon written notice to the 
President, the Vice President, the Secretary or the Board of Directors of the Authority, unless the 
notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of such resignation.  If the Executive Committee 
receives the resignation of one of its members, tendered to take effect at a future time, the Board 
of Directors shall have the power to elect a successor to take office when the resignation 
becomes effective, or the Executive Committee may do so on an interim basis pending such 
Board Action. 
 

 Section 5. Removal of Executive Committee or its Individual Members by Board 
of Directors.   

The entire Executive Committee or any of its individual members may be removed from 
office by a two-thirds vote of the Directors present at a duly held meeting of the Board of 
Directors. 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 7 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

Section 6. Regular Meetings. 

  (a) Regular Meetings. 
 
  The Executive Committee shall hold a regular monthly meeting.  In the event a 
meeting date falls on a holiday or conflicts with another activity of the Authority or its Members, 
the President and Chief Executive Officer may confer and the President will reschedule the 
monthly meeting to a more convenient date, giving notice to all Members. 
 
  (b) Call and Notice. 
 
  No further call or notice of regular meetings need be given, except as is required 
to comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code Section 54950 et seq. 
 

 Section 7. Special Meetings. 

  (a) Call. 
 
  Special meetings of the Executive Committee for any purpose or purposes may be 
called at any time by the President, the Vice President, the Secretary, any two members of the 
Executive Committee, or the Chief Executive Officer. 
 
  (b) Notice. 
 
  Notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be given in writing to the 
members of the Executive Committee, delivered personally, by mail, email, or other approved 
method of delivery to each member at least 24 hours before the time of such meeting.  Such 
notice shall specify the business to be transacted at the meeting and no business other than that 
specified in the notice shall be transacted at that meeting.  Said notice shall be given in 
compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code Section 54950 et seq. 
 

 Section 8. Actions at Meetings.   

The President, or in his or her absence, the Vice President shall serve as the Chairperson 
of the Executive Committee.  The presence of a majority of the authorized number of Committee 
members at a meeting constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business, except as hereinafter 
provided.  Members of the Committee may participate in a meeting through use of conference 
telephone or similar communications equipment, so long as all members participating in such 
meeting can hear one another; such participation in a meeting constitutes presence in person at 
such meeting.  Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the Committee members 
present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the 
Executive Committee, unless a greater number is required by law, by the Agreement creating the 
Authority, or by these Bylaws.  A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to 
transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of members, provided that any action taken is 
approved by a number of members at least equal to a majority  (or greater number if required) of 
the number required for a quorum for such meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 8 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

 Section 9. Adjourned Meetings. 

  (a) Adjournment. 
 
  A quorum of the members of the Executive Committee may adjourn any 
Executive Committee meeting to a stated day, hour and place; provided, however, that in the 
absence of a quorum a majority of the Executive Committee members present at any meeting 
may adjourn from time to time to a time not later than the time fixed for the next regular meeting 
of the Executive Committee. 
 
  (b) Notice of Adjournment. 
 
  If a meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours, at least 24-hours written notice 
of such adjournment to another time or place shall be given prior to the time of the adjourned 
meeting to the Executive Committee members who were not present at the time of adjournment.  
Otherwise, notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given if the 
time and place are fixed at the time of adjournment, except that the provisions of the Ralph M. 
Brown Act, California Government Code Sections 54950 et seq., shall be complied with. 

ARTICLE IV – CLAIMS COMMITTEE 

Section 1. Composition.  

The Claims Committee shall be composed of each member of the Executive Committee, 
the Managers Committee Chair, and the Finance Officers Committee Chair. 

Section 2. Meetings.   

The President shall appoint an Executive Committee member to serve as the Chair of the 
Claims Committee.  The Chair, or in his or her absence the President, shall preside over the 
meetings.  The presence of a majority of the authorized number of Committee members at a 
meeting constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business, except as hereinafter provided.  
Members of the Committee may participate in a meeting through use of conference telephone or 
similar communications equipment, so long as all members participating in such meeting can 
hear one another; such participation in a meeting constitutes presence in person at such meeting.  
Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the Committee members present at a 
meeting duly held at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Claims 
Committee, unless a greater number is required by law, by the Agreement creating the Authority, 
or by these Bylaws.  A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact 
business notwithstanding the withdrawal of members, provided that any action taken is approved 
by a number of members at least equal to a majority of the number required for a quorum for 
such meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 9 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

ARTICLE V - ADVISORY COMMITTEES 

 Section 1. Managers Committee.   

Pursuant to the Agreement creating the Authority, the Managers Committee shall be 
composed of one representative from each Member, who shall be the City Manager, City 
Administrator or the Chief Executive Officer of that Member.  An alternate may be designated in 
writing to serve in place of and may vote for that representative in his or her absence.  At any 
meeting, the presence in person or by approved teleconference of at least seven Managers or 
alternates shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.  In the absence of a quorum, a 
majority of the Committee members present at any meeting may adjourn from time to time to a 
time not later than the time fixed for the next regular meeting of the Committee. 
 

 Section 2. Finance Officers Committee.  

Pursuant to the Agreement creating the Authority, the Finance Officers Committee shall 
be composed of one representative from each Member, who shall be the Finance Director or 
Chief Finance Officer of that Member.  An alternate may be designated in writing to serve in 
place of and may vote for that representative in his or her absence. At any meeting, the presence 
in person or by approved teleconference of at least seven Finance Officers or alternates shall 
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.   In the absence of a quorum, a majority of 
the Committee members present at any meeting may adjourn from time to time to a time not later 
than the time fixed for the next regular meeting of the Committee. 

 

 Section 3. Underwriting Committee.  

Pursuant to the Agreement creating the Authority, the Underwriting Committee shall be 
composed of the Managers Committee Chair and Vice Chair, the Finance Officers Committee 
Chair and Vice Chair, and the Chief Executive Officer of the Authority.  Three representatives 
shall constitute a quorum.  In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the Committee members 
present at any meeting may adjourn. 

 Section 4. Other Committees 

 Other committees may be created by the Executive Committee for the purpose of 
providing specialized advice to the Executive Committee on the subject matter brought before it.  
The committee’s purpose, composition, quorum requirements, and meeting schedule may be 
defined by the Executive Committee or delegated by the Executive Committee to the advisory 
committee itself. 

 Section 5. Meetings.   

Such Committees shall meet from time to time and shall elect their respective 
Chairpersons, Vice Chairpersons and other officers as deemed necessary by them.  All meetings 
shall be noticed in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code 
Section 54950, et seq.   

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 10 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

ARTICLE VI - OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES 

 Section 1. Officers.   

The officers of the Authority shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, and a 
Treasurer.  The Executive Committee may, in addition, provide for other officers as it deems 
necessary for the performance of the business of the Authority. 
 

 Section 2. Election and Term of Office.  

The President and Vice President of the Authority shall be elected by the Board of 
Directors at its annual meeting, and each shall hold office for a term of two years or until he or 
she resigns or is removed or otherwise disqualified to serve, and until his or her successor is 
elected. 
 

 Section 3. Other Officers and Employees.  

The Executive Committee shall appoint, or may empower the President to appoint, 
subject to ratification by the Executive Committee, all officers other than the President and Vice 
President.  Except as may otherwise be provided in the Agreement creating the Authority or the 
Bylaws, such officers shall hold office until replaced by action of the Executive Committee.  The 
Executive Committee shall also appoint a Chief Executive Officer and Authority Attorney who 
shall serve at the pleasure of the Executive Committee or for such term as the Executive 
Committee may provide by agreement.  All officers and employees shall have such authority and 
perform such duties as are provided in the Agreement creating the Authority, or the Bylaws or as 
the Executive Committee may from time to time determine.  The Executive Committee may 
provide for the payment of compensation to officers or employees for their services to the 
Authority. 
 

 Section 4. Vacancies.   

A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, 
expiration of term, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in the Agreement 
creating the Authority and the Bylaws for regular appointments to such office. 
 

 Section 5. Removal and Resignation. 

  (a) Removal. 
 
  The President, Vice President or any Executive Committee member may be 
removed, without cause, by the Board of Directors, at any regular or special meeting thereof.  An 
officer chosen by the Executive Committee may be removed, without cause, by that Committee 
or by any officer upon whom such power of removal may be conferred by the Committee, 
(subject, in each case, to the rights, if any, of an officer under any contract of employment). 
 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 11 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

  (b) Resignation. 
 
  Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Executive 
Committee or to the President, or to the Secretary of the Authority, without prejudice, however, 
to the rights, if any, of the Authority under any contract to which such officer is a party.  Any 
such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time 
specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall 
not be necessary to make it effective. 
 

 Section 6. President.   

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Executive 
Committee.  He or she shall be a member of all of the Executive Committee standing 
committees, and shall have the powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of 
Directors, the Agreement creating the Authority, or the Bylaws. 
 

 Section 7. Vice President.   

In the absence or disability of the President, the Vice President shall perform all the 
duties of the President, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the 
restrictions upon, the President.  The Vice President shall have such other powers and perform 
such other duties as from time to time may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or the 
Bylaws. 
 

 Section 8. Secretary.   

The Secretary shall record or cause to be recorded, and shall keep or cause to be kept, at 
the principal executive office or such other place as the Executive Committee may order, a book 
of minutes of actions taken at all meetings of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee, 
whether regular or special, (and, if special, how authorized), the notice thereof given, the names 
of those present at the meetings, and the proceedings thereof. 
 
 The Secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office of the 
Authority a list of all designated Directors and alternates of each Member. 
 
 The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all the meetings of the Board of 
Directors and of the Executive Committee required by the Bylaws or by law to be given, and 
shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the 
Executive Committee, the Agreement creating the Authority, or by the Bylaws. 
 

 Section 9. Treasurer.   

The Treasurer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and 
correct financial records of the Authority, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, 
and disbursements, and shall have such other duties as are provided for in the Agreement 
creating the Authority. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 12 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

  Section 10. Chief Executive Officer   

 The Chief Executive Officer shall be authorized and responsible for the overall 
management and administration of the Authority and its joint protection programs and shall 
select and appoint all employees.  The Chief Executive Officer shall have such other and related 
duties as may be prescribed by the Executive Committee or the Bylaws.  

ARTICLE VII - MISCELLANEOUS 

 Section 1. Rules and Regulations of Joint Protection Programs.   

As soon as practicable after development of the details of a joint protection program of 
the Authority, the specific rules and regulations for the implementation of the program shall be 
adopted by the Executive Committee, which shall cause them to be set forth in written form and 
a copy thereof distributed to each Member.  Such rules and regulations shall be included in any 
procedure manual prepared by the Authority for the Members. 
 

 Section 2. Annual Report.   

The Executive Committee of the Authority shall cause an annual report to be sent to the 
Members not later than 270 days after the close of each fiscal year.  Such report shall contain a 
balance sheet as of the end of such fiscal year and an income statement and statement of changes 
in financial position for such fiscal year, and shall be accompanied by the annual audit report 
thereon and such other information as may be required by law. 
 

 Section 3. Defense of Agents of the Authority. 

  (a) For the purpose of this Article, "agent" means any person who is or was an 
officer, employee or other agent of the Authority. 
 
  (b) The Authority shall provide for the defense of any civil action or 
proceeding brought against any such agent of the Authority in his or her official or individual 
capacity or both, on account of an act or omission within the scope of his or her agency as an 
agent of the Authority, and to the extent of such defense as is provided for in California 
Government Code Section 995 et seq. 
 

 Section 4. Inspection of Authority Records.   

The accounting, books and records, the list of Members' designated Directors and 
alternates, and minutes of proceedings of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee 
and all other committees of the Authority shall be open to the inspection of any Member at any 
reasonable time.  Such inspection by a Member may be made in person or by agent or attorney, 
and the right of inspection includes the right to copy and make extracts. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 13 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

 Section 5. Checks and Drafts.   

All checks, drafts or other orders for payment of money, notes or other evidences of 
indebtedness, issued in the name of or payable to the Authority, shall be signed or endorsed by 
the President and Treasurer or by such person or persons and in such manner as, from time to 
time, shall be determined by the Executive Committee. 
 

 Section 6. Register of Demands.   

A register of all demands shall be submitted to the Executive Committee for payment 
approval, and shall have attached thereto the affidavit or declaration of the Chief Executive 
Officer certifying as to the accuracy of the demands and the availability of funds for payment 
thereof.  The Executive Committee shall not hear, consider, allow or approve any bill or demand 
against the Authority unless the same is itemized giving names, dates, and particular services 
tendered, and any other pertinent details as the case may be.  Demands for salaries and wages of 
officers and employees of the Authority may, but need not be, presented to the Executive 
Committee prior to payment but shall appear on the next register of demands for approval. 
 
 After approval of the register of demands by the Executive Committee, the public officer 
performing the function of Treasurer shall sign the warrant authorizing payment of the demands 
so approved.  Signatures on warrants may be by facsimile. 
 

 Section 7. Execution of Contracts.   

The Executive Committee may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter 
into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, and 
such authorization may be general or confined to specific instances.  Unless so authorized by the 
Executive Committee, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind 
the Authority by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any 
purpose or to any amount.  The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to enter into any contract 
or execute any instrument in the name of, and on behalf of, the Authority for services and 
programs approved by the Executive Committee or Board of Directors, subject to limitations 
(including budget limitations) set by the Executive Committee or the Board of Directors. 
 

 Section 8. Rules of Procedure for Meetings.   

All meetings of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee and any other Committees 
of the Authority shall be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order, except where 
such are in conflict with California law, the Agreement creating the Authority, or the Bylaws, 
whereupon the latter two shall govern over said Rules of Order. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



Bylaws Page 14 of 14 Adopted July 21, 2010 
 

ARTICLE VIII - AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS 

 Section 1. Power of Board of Directors.   

New Bylaws may be adopted or these Bylaws may be amended or repealed by the 
affirmative vote of a majority of the quorum at a meeting of the Board of Directors, except as 
otherwise provided by the Agreement creating the Authority. 
 

 Section 2. Power of Executive Committee. 

Subject to the right of the Board of Directors as provided in Section 1 of this Article VIII 
to adopt or amend Bylaws, Bylaws other than a bylaw or amendment thereof changing the 
authorized number of members of the Executive Committee may be adopted or amended by the 
Executive Committee.  Any amendment by the Executive Committee shall be on the agenda of 
the next meeting of the Board of Directors for ratification.  An affirmative vote by a majority of 
the quorum shall constitute ratification of the amendment. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT A



 Membership by County 
Membership as of July 1, 2012 

Imperial County 
Brawley 
Calexico 
El Centro 
Imperial 
 
Inyo County 
Bishop 
Eastern Sierra Transit Authority 
 
Los Angeles County 
Agoura Hills 
Agoura Hills Calabasas Community Center 

Authority 
Area B Disaster Management 
Area E Disaster Management 
Artesia 
Bell Gardens 
Bellflower 
Bradbury 
Calabasas 
Cerritos 
Claremont  
Commerce  
Cudahy 
Diamond Bar  
Duarte 
Gateway Cities Council of Governments 
Hawaiian Gardens 
Hidden Hills  
Irwindale 
La Cañada Flintridge  
La Habra Heights 
La Mirada 
La Puente 
La Verne 
Lakewood 
Lawndale 
Lomita 
Los Angeles Interagency Metropolitan Police 

Apprehension Task Force 
 
 

Los Angeles County (Continued) 
Malibu  
Maywood 
Norwalk 
Palos Verdes Estates 
Palos Verdes Peninsula Transit Authority 
Paramount  
Pico Rivera 
Pomona Valley Transportation Authority 
Rancho Palos Verdes 
Rolling Hills 
Rolling Hills Estates  
Rosemead 
San Dimas 
San Gabriel 
San Marino 
Santa Fe Springs 
Sierra Madre 
Signal Hill 
South El Monte 
South Pasadena  
Southeast Area Animal Control Authority 
Southern California Association of 

Governments 
Temple City 
Walnut 
West Hollywood 
Westlake Village 
 
Marin County 
Belvedere 
Marin County Major Crimes Task Force 
 
Mono County 
Mammoth Lakes 
 
Monterey County 
Monterey Peninsula Regional Park District 
Seaside  
Seaside County Sanitation District 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT B



 Membership by County 
Membership as of July 1, 2012 

Orange County 
Aliso Viejo 
Coastal Animal Services Authority 
Dana Point 
Fountain Valley 
La Palma 
Laguna Niguel 
Laguna Woods 
Lake Forest  
Los Alamitos 
Mission Viejo  
San Clemente 
San Juan Capistrano 
Seal Beach 
Villa Park 
West Cities Police Communications Center 
 
Riverside County 
Coachella Valley Association of Governments 
Coachella Valley Conservation Commission 
Desert Recreation District 
Indian Wells 
Indio 
La Quinta 
Lake Elsinore 
Palm Desert 
 
San Bernardino 
Apple Valley 
Big Bear City Community Services District 
Big Bear Lake 
Chino Hills 
Grand Terrace 
Loma Linda 
Mountain Area Regional Transit Authority 
Needles 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

San Diego County 
Poway 
San Marcos 
 
San Luis Obispo County 
Arroyo Grande 
Atascadero 
Black Gold Cooperative Library System 
Grover Beach 
Morro Bay 
Paso Robles 
Pismo Beach 
San Luis Obispo 
 
Santa Barbara County 
Buellton 
Carpinteria 
Goleta 
Guadalupe 
Solvang 
 
Santa Clara County 
Midpeninsula Regional Open Space District 
 
Ventura County 
Camarillo 
Fillmore 
Moorpark 
Ojai 
Port Hueneme 
Santa Paula 
Ventura Port District 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT B



 

Memorandum of Liability Coverage 

Issued to the «Agency» 

Effective July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

Administered by the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority 

Effective July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013, as a joint protection program authorized pursuant to  

Article 11(a) of the California JPIA joint powers agreement 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



i 

 

COVER PAGE 
 

MEMORANDUM OF LIABILITY COVERAGE 
FOR THE 

CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY 
 

 

MEMBER: «Member_Name» 

 

MAILING ADDRESS: «Member_Address» 

 «City», «State» «Zip» 
 
 

PROTECTION LIMITS: Primary layer:  $15,000,000 

  

PROTECTION PERIOD: From July 1, 2012 at 12:01 a.m. Pacific Time until July 1, 2013 at 
12:01 a.m. Pacific Time. 

 

ENDORSEMENT(S): 
 
 
This Memorandum, and any endorsements thereto, are a description of the terms and conditions of the 
Program through which certain specified and limited self-insured risks of liability are administered by the 
Authority and shared by its Members.  This Memorandum is not an insurance policy.  As provided in 
Section 990.8 of the California Government Code and appellate court cases of Orange County Water 
District v. Association of California Water Agencies JPIA (1997) and City of South El Monte v. Southern 
California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (1995), the pooling of self-insured claims or losses among 
the Members of the Authority shall not be considered insurance nor be subject to regulation under the 
Insurance Code. 

 
CALIFORNIA JPIA 

     By  
  President

 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



ii 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1. INTRODUCTION _________________________________________________________ 1 

2. PROTECTION PROVIDED ________________________________________________ 1 

A. Payments on Behalf of Protected Parties _____________________________________ 1 

B. Defense and Settlement ___________________________________________________ 2 

C. Protection Limit _________________________________________________________ 3 

D. Statutory Limitations _____________________________________________________ 3 

E. Territorial Limitation _____________________________________________________ 4 

3. DEFINITIONS ___________________________________________________________ 4 

4. EXCLUSIONS ___________________________________________________________ 13 

5. CONDITIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES ___________________________________ 20 

A. Inspection and Audit ____________________________________________________ 20 

B. Severability of Interest ___________________________________________________ 20 

C. Protected Party’s Duties in the Event of Occurrence, Claim or Suit ______________ 20 

D. Other Protection ________________________________________________________ 21 

E. Termination or Amendment ______________________________________________ 21 

F. Changes ______________________________________________________________ 21 

G. Subrogation ___________________________________________________________ 22 

H. Assignment ____________________________________________________________ 22 

I. Joint Powers Agreement _________________________________________________ 22 

J. Appeal of Disputes ______________________________________________________ 22 

K. Arbitration ____________________________________________________________ 24 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 1 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

MEMORANDUM OF LIABILITY COVERAGE 

for the 

CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

This Memorandum is a description of the terms and conditions of the Program through 
which certain self-insured risks of liability are administered by the Authority and shared 
by its Members pursuant to the Joint Powers Agreement creating the Authority under 
the provisions of Section 6500 et seq. of the Government Code. 

As provided in Section 990.8 of the Government Code, pooling of losses in this Program 
is not insurance.  The sole duty of the Authority is to administer the Program adopted 
by the Members.  The Authority can indemnify only Claims or losses, which are pooled 
under the terms of this Memorandum and the Joint Powers Agreement.  There is no 
transfer of risk from the Member or any Protected Party to the Authority nor 
assumption of risk by the Authority. 

The provisions of the Program are subject to and subordinated to the Joint Powers 
Agreement or any action taken by the Executive Committee or the Board of Directors in 
connection with the Program.  This Program has been adopted pursuant to action taken 
by the Executive Committee, and is subject to any amendment, modification or extension 
by the Executive Committee or the Board of Directors. 

The terms of this Memorandum shall be construed in an evenhanded fashion in 
accordance with the principles of California contract law.  If the language of this 
Memorandum is alleged to be ambiguous or unclear, the issue of how the protection 
should apply shall be resolved in a manner most consistent with the relevant terms of this 
Memorandum without regard to authorship of the language and without any 
presumption of arbitrary interpretation or construction in favor of either the Protected 
Party or the Authority.  Any controversy or dispute arising out of or related to an 
interpretation or breach of this Memorandum shall be settled in accordance with the 
appeals procedures as set forth in this Memorandum. 

Throughout this Memorandum, words and phrases that appear in bold print are defined 
in 3. DEFINITIONS.  

 

2. PROTECTION PROVIDED 

A. Payments on Behalf of Protected Parties 

Subject to all provisions of this Memorandum, the Authority will cause the Program to 
pay on behalf of the Protected Party all sums that the Protected Party shall become 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 2 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

legally obligated to pay as Damages by reason of Tort Liability imposed by law, or the 
Tort Liability of others assumed in a Protected Contract, because of: 

(i) Bodily Injury or Property Damage; 

(ii) Personal Injury; 

(iii) Public Officials Errors and Omissions; 

(iv) Broadcast/Publication Injury; 

(v) Employment Practices Injury;  

(vi) Employee Benefit Administration Liability; or 

(vii) Termination of City Manager’s Employment Liability 

caused by an Occurrence to which this Memorandum applies. 

B. Defense and Settlement 

The Authority, at the shared expense of its Members, and out of funds of the Program 
deposited or obligated to be deposited by its Members, shall investigate, negotiate, settle, 
or Defend, at the Authority’s sole discretion, any Claim or Suit which has been 
tendered to the Authority and which in the sole opinion of the Authority is encompassed 
by this Program.  The Authority shall control selection of defense counsel.  Defense 
Costs incurred by the Protected Party prior to the tender of the Claim or Suit, as 
required by 5. CONDITIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES, to the Authority are the sole 
obligation of the Protected Party.  The date of the tender of the Claim or Suit shall be 
the date written notice of said Claim or Suit is received at the Authority’s offices (or its 
designated Claims Administrator). 

The obligation of the Authority as described above shall cease to apply after the 
Protection Limit has been exhausted by any combination of payments hereunder for 
judgments, settlements, or Defense Costs, or if the Authority tenders the Protection 
Limit on behalf of any Protected Party.  For purposes of excess insurance or 
reinsurance, any Defense Costs incurred prior to the tender of the Protection Limit shall 
be deducted from the Protection Limit that is tendered. 

With respect to any Claim or Suit or part thereof which has been tendered to the 
Authority and over which the Authority assumes full or partial responsibility or charge 
of the settlement or Defense, the Authority shall, if applicable, cause the Program to 
pay: 

(i) All expenses incurred by the Authority on behalf of a Protected Party; 

(ii) Costs taxed against a Protected Party in the Suit; and 

(iii) Other reasonable expenses incurred by a Protected Party at the Authority’s 
request to assist the Authority in the investigation or Defense of the Claim or 
Suit; but this shall not include the office expenses of the Protected Party, the 
salaries of Employees or officials of the Protected Party, nor expenses of 
any claims administrator engaged by the Protected Party. 

With respect to a Claim or Suit for which the Authority has determined that only a 
portion is encompassed by this Program, the Authority shall cause the Program to fund 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 3 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

any Defense to the Claim or Suit against the Member and any settlement or final 
judgment of that Claim or Suit, subject to the reservation by the Authority of the right to 
recover from the Member any amounts paid by the Authority for such settlement or 
final judgment which are paid to claimants for Claims or Suits, or portions thereof, not 
encompassed by the Program. 

With respect to a Claim or Suit for which the Authority has determined that no portion 
is encompassed by this Program, the Claim or Suit shall be referred, in its entirety, back 
to the Protected Party. 

The payment of Defense Costs will reduce the Protection Limit under this Program.   

C. Protection Limit 

The Protection Limit shown on the Cover Page and the rules below determine the most 
the Program will pay, inclusive of Defense Costs, regardless of the number of: 

(i) Protected Parties; 

(ii) Claims made or Suits brought; or 

(iii) Persons or organizations that sustain injuries or Damages. 

The Protection Limit stated on the Cover Page is the most the Program will pay per 
Member for the sum of Damages, Defense Costs and expenses as included in B. 
Defense and Settlement under any or all or any combination of Bodily Injury, Property 
Damage, Personal Injury, Public Officials Errors and Omissions, 
Broadcast/Publication Injury, Employment Practices Injury, Employee Benefit 
Administration Injury, or Termination of City Manager’s Employment Liability 
arising out of any one Occurrence. 

For the purpose of determining the Protection Limit all Bodily Injury, Property 
Damage, Personal Injury, Public Officials Errors and Omissions, 
Broadcast/Publication Injury, Employment Practices Injury, Employee Benefit 
Administration Liability, or Termination of City Manager’s Employment Liability 
arising out of exposure to substantially the same general condition(s) shall be considered 
as arising out of one Occurrence. 

Any actual or alleged loss of use of tangible property not physically injured or destroyed 
shall be deemed to occur at the time of the Occurrence that caused such loss of use.  Any 
other injury or damage occurring or alleged to have occurred over more than one 
Protection Period shall be deemed to have occurred during the Protection Period when 
the Occurrence began.   

D. Statutory Limitations 

Notwithstanding sections 2.A. and 2.B. above, the defense and/or indemnity protections 
afforded by this agreement to a past or present elected or appointed official or Employee 
of a Member are not broader than the Member’s own duty to defend and indemnify its 
official or Employee under California Government Code sections 825, et seq. and 995, et 
seq.  All immunities, defenses, rights, and privileges of the Member under the 
Government Code apply to the Program as well, including any defense that the official 
or Employee acted outside the course and scope of employment or acted with fraud, 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 4 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

corruption or actual malice, or any defense that the action or proceeding or type of 
damage sought is not the type for which the Member is obligated to provide defense 
and/or indemnity.  The defense and/or indemnity protections are also subject to all the 
terms, conditions, and Exclusions of this Memorandum and do not apply if not covered 
by this Memorandum, even if an obligation to defend and/or indemnify would exist 
under the Government Code. 

E. Territorial Limitation 

This Memorandum applies only to Claims made in the courts of the United States or of 
any State. 

 

3. DEFINITIONS 

Administration under Employee Benefits Administration Liability means: 

A. Giving counsel to employees with respect to the Employee Benefits Programs; 

B. Interpreting the Employee Benefits Programs; 

C. Handling of records in connection with the Employee Benefits Programs; or 

D. Effecting enrollment, termination, or cancellation of employees under the 
Employee Benefits Programs, provided all such acts are authorized by the 
Member. 

Aircraft means any vehicle designed to transport people or property through the air. 

Airport means any locality either on land or water which is adopted for the landing and 
taking off of Aircraft, including all land, water, buildings, structures, equipment or other 
improvements necessary or convenient in the establishment and operation of an Airport. 

Authority means the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority.  

Automobile means a land motor vehicle, trailer, or semi-trailer. 

Bodily Injury means bodily injury, sickness, or disease sustained by any person, 
including death resulting from any of these at any time. 

Broadcast/Publication Injury means injury caused by or arising out of: 

A. Any form of defamation or other tort related to disparagement or harm to the 
character, reputation or feelings of any natural person or organization including but 
not limited to libel, slander, product disparagement, trade libel, infliction of 
emotional distress, outrage, or outrageous conduct;  

B. Any form of invasion of, infringement of, or interference with rights of privacy or 
publicity; including but not limited to false light, public disclosure of private facts, 
intrusion, and commercial appropriation of name or likeness; 

C. Infringement of copyright or trademark; 

D. Plagiarism or piracy or misappropriation of ideas under implied contract; 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 5 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

E. Unauthorized use of names, trade names, trademarks, service marks, titles, formats, 
ideas, characters, character names, characterizations, performances, plots, musical 
compositions, slogans, program material, or any other similar material; or 

F. Denial of access to broadcast facilities based upon application of judgment or 
standards relating to the acceptability of material for public broadcast; committed in 
the course of the Protected Party’s broadcast or publication activities. 

Certification means a signed statement by a City Manager that he or she is entitled to 
the Unemployment Protection Payment because he or she is unemployed or is 
employed but at a specified lower salary than he or she was earning at the time of the 
Occurrence and has not retired under a retirement program in which the City Manager 
earned benefits as a public employee.  The initial executed Certification must be 
received within 60 days following the Waiting Period. 

City Manager means the governing body-appointed chief administrative officer of a 
Protected Party whether called City Manager, Chief Administrative Officer, General 
Manager or other title designating the highest appointed official of the governmental 
entity. 

Claim means a notice, demand, or Suit against a Protected Party to recover Damages.  
Claim does not include an administrative claim filed with the Equal Opportunity 
Employment Commission, the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, 
or other similar state or federal administrative agency. 

Dam means a structure described by California Water Code sections 6002 through 6004.   

Damages means compensation in money recovered by a party for loss or detriment it has 
suffered through the acts of a Protected Party.  Damages does not include defense of 
Claims or any punitive, exemplary or multiplied damages or non-monetary relief or 
redress or injunctive relief. 

Defense Costs means all fees and expenses incurred in connection with the adjustment, 
investigation, defense, and appeal of a Claim covered hereunder, including attorney fees, 
court costs, premiums for appeal bonds, and interest on judgments accruing after the 
entry of judgment, and also shall include the costs of any claims administrator or defense 
counsel assigned by the Authority to respond to any Claim on behalf of the Authority.  
Defense Costs shall not include the office expenses of the Protected Party, nor the 
salaries of employees or officials of the Protected Party, nor expenses of any claims 
administrator engaged by the Protected Party.  Defense Costs also do not include any 
fee or expense relating to coverage issues between the Authority and any Protected 
Party.    

Discrimination means injury caused by or arising out of: 

A. Unlawful discrimination because of race, sex, color, age, religion, or national origin, 
or membership in any similar legally protected class; or 

B. Violation of the discrimination prohibitions of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990, any rules or regulations promulgated thereunder and amendments thereto 
or similar provisions of any federal, state, or local statutory law or common law.   

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 6 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

Employee includes any person falling within the definition of “employee” under section 
810.2 of the Government Code.  That section provides:  “Employee includes an 
officer…employee, or servant, whether or not compensated, but does not include an 
independent contractor.”  Employee also includes any volunteer designated by the 
Member to perform specific functions in the course and scope of authorized activities 
under the direction and control of the Member. 

Employee Benefit Administration Liability means liability for injury or damage caused 
by or arising out of any negligent act, error or omission of the Protected Party in the 
Administration of the Member’s Employee Benefits Programs. 

Employee Benefits Program means group life insurance or self-insurance, group 
medical, dental or vision-care insurance or self-insurance, pension plans, retirement 
plans, deferred compensation plans, workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, 
social benefits, disability benefits, and other similar employee benefits.  

Employment Practices Injury means injury arising out of the following offenses: 

A. Wrongful dismissal, discharge, or termination of employment; 

B. Breach of any oral or written employment contract or quasi-employment contract; 

C. Employment-related coercion or misrepresentation; 

D. Violation of employment discrimination laws; 

E. Workplace sexual or other harassment; 

F. Wrongful failure to employ or promote; 

G. Wrongful discipline, negligent evaluation, or wrongful demotion; 

H. Wrongful deprivation of a career opportunity; or 

I. Employment-related: 

(i) Invasion of privacy, 

(ii) Defamation, or 

(iii) Wrongful infliction of emotional distress. 

Fungi means any type or form of fungus, including mold or mildew and any mycotoxins, 
spores, scents, or byproducts produced or released by fungi. 

Hostile Fire means a fire that becomes uncontrollable and breaks out from where it is 
intended to be. 

Levee means a permanent embankment intentionally constructed for the purpose of 
preventing overflow of a watercourse or body of water. 

Medical Benefit means the cost of all benefits to which a City Manager is entitled under 
the Comprehensive Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986 (COBRA). 

Member means the entity, including all of its departments and constituent agencies, that 
is a signatory to the Joint Powers Agreement creating the Authority as may be amended 
from time to time, which has adopted a resolution to participate in the Program, and 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 7 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

whose name appears on the Cover Page of this Memorandum.  Member includes any 
other agency for which the Member’s governing board or council acts as the governing 
board, and also includes any commissions, agencies, districts, authorities, redevelopment 
agencies, boards, or similar entities coming under the Member’s direction and control.  
Member shall include any other agency authorized by the Authority’s Executive 
Committee or Board of Directors. 

Memorandum means this Memorandum of Liability Coverage authorized by the Joint 
Powers Agreement of the Authority specifying the terms and conditions of the Program 
through which certain specified and limited self-insured risks of liability are administered 
by the Authority and shared by its Members. 

Nuclear Material means “source material,” “special nuclear material,” or “by-product 
material” as those terms are given meaning in the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 or any law 
amendatory thereto. 

Occurrence means: 

A. With respect to Bodily Injury or Property Damage, an accident, including 
continuous or repeated exposure to conditions, that first occurs during the 
Protection Period and that results in Bodily Injury or Property Damage neither 
expected nor intended from the standpoint of the Protected Party; 

B. With respect to Public Officials Errors and Omissions, actual or alleged conduct 
described in the definition of Public Officials Errors and Omissions during the 
Protection Period; 

C. With respect to Employee Benefits Administration Liability, actual or alleged 
conduct described in the definition of Employee Benefits Administration Liability 
during the Protection Period; 

D. With respect to Personal Injury, Broadcast/Publication Injury, and Employment 
Practices Liability, an offense described in the definitions of those terms; or 

E. With respect to Termination of City Manager’s Employment Liability, injury 
arising out of: 

(i) Dismissal, discharge, or termination of the employment of a City Manager; 
or 

(ii) Failure to renew an employment contract which results in termination of the 
employment of a City Manager 

for which liability on the part of a Protected Party can be settled through the 
acceptance by the City Manager of an Unemployment Protection Payment in 
exchange for a Waiver and Certification. 

All claims based on or arising out of Harassment or similar conduct (including 
molestation or sexual abuse) by an Employee, or more than one Employee acting in 
concert, will be considered arising out of one Occurrence and shall be deemed to have 
been committed at the time of the first of such acts or alleged acts, regardless of the 
number of: 

(i) Protected Parties; 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 8 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

(ii) Claims made or Suits brought; or 

(iii) persons or organizations that sustain injuries or Damages. 

If a series of wrongful acts committed by one Employee, or more than one Employee 
acting in concert, takes place over more than one Protection Period, the wrongful acts 
will be deemed to have been committed during the first Protection Period and only the 
Protection Limit for that Protection Period shall apply. 

Personal Injury means injury, other than Bodily Injury, Property Damage or Public 
Officials Errors and Omissions, resulting from one or more of the following offenses: 

A. False arrest, detention, or imprisonment; 

B. The use of force for the purpose of protecting persons or property; 

C. Malicious prosecution or abuse of process; 

D. Wrongful entry by any employee of the Member into a room, dwelling, or other 
similar premises that a person occupies; 

E. Wrongful eviction by any employee of the Member of a person from a room, 
dwelling, or other similar premises that such person occupies; 

F. The publication or utterance of a libel or slander, including statements that 
disparage a person’s or organization’s goods, products, or services; 

G. A publication or utterance that violates a person’s right of privacy; 

H. Interference with an existing or prospective economic advantage, contract, or 
agreement; 

I. Discrimination;  

J. Violation of civil rights; or   

K. Infliction of emotional distress. 

Pollutants/Hazardous Materials includes without limitation: 

A. Any flammable or explosive substances, radioactive materials, asbestos, poly-
chlorinated biphenyls, chemicals, substances known to cause cancer or reproductive 
toxicity, pollutants, contaminants, hazardous wastes, toxic substances, or related 
materials which are regulated by or under any federal, state, or local environmental 
law; 

B. Any material identified as hazardous in Sections 66261.10 through 66261.126 of 
Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, as amended from time to time 
(collectively);  

C. Any solid, liquid, gaseous or thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke, 
vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals, and waste.  The term “waste” includes 
materials to be recycled, reconditioned, or reclaimed; and 

D. Fungi and bacteria of any kind, unless caused by an otherwise covered Occurrence.  

Program means the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority Liability Protection 
Program described by this Memorandum and the Agreement of the Members creating 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 9 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

the Authority.  The Program is a fund created by the Members for the purpose of 
pooling self-insured losses. 

Property Damage means: 

A. Physical injury to or destruction of tangible property which occurs during the 
Protection Period, including the loss of use thereof at any time resulting there 
from; or 

B. Loss of use of tangible property that has not been physically injured or destroyed 
provided such loss of use is caused by an Occurrence during the Protection 
Period. 

Protected Contract means a written agreement that satisfies all of the following: 

A. The agreement pertains to the Member’s operations and by the contract terms the 
Member assumes the Tort Liability of another to pay damages because of Bodily 
Injury or Property Damage to a third person or organization; 

B. The agreement is entered into prior to the Bodily Injury or Property Damage for 
which a Claim is made; and 

C. The agreement, including its value, is reported by the Member and approved by the 
Authority through issuance of an evidence of coverage letter prior to the Bodily 
Injury or Property Damage and the value is added to the Member’s annual 
payroll for use in any retrospective deposit or annual contribution computation.   

A Protected Contract may cover an architect, engineer, or surveyor for his or her 
role as a Public Official, except for the application of paragraphs B.(i) and B.(ii) 
below.  Protected Contracts may apply to contract public works directors, building 
officials, planning directors, City Managers, city attorneys, city prosecutors, 
redevelopment directors, or other contracted Public Officials for occurrences arising 
out of their official duties, but this coverage applies only to the named contract 
Public Official and does not extend to other individuals within the contractor’s firm.   

A Protected Contract does not include any part of any contract or agreement: 

A. That indemnifies any person or organization for injury or damages caused by or 
arising out of the ownership, operation, maintenance or use of any Aircraft, 
Airport or Watercraft; 

B. That indemnifies an architect, engineer, or surveyor.  This exclusion does not apply 
in the instance where an individual is under an exclusive contract as a contract 
Public Official solely for the benefit of the Member (i.e., no work is performed by 
the person for any other person or entity), for injury or damage arising out of: 

(i) Preparing, approving, or failing to prepare or approve maps, drawings, 
opinions, reports, surveys, change orders, designs or specifications; or 

(ii) Giving or failing to give directions or instructions, if that is the primary cause 
of the injury or damage; 

C. Under which the Protected Party, if an architect, engineer, or surveyor, assumes 
liability for injury or damage arising out of the Protected Party’s rendering or 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 10 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

failing to render professional services, including those listed in B. above and 
supervisory, inspection, or engineering services; 

D. That indemnifies any person or organization for damages by fire, explosion, or 
water damage to premises rented or loaned to the Member; or 

E. That indemnifies any person or organization in connection with the establishment, 
designation, or implementation of a Quiet Zone. 

Limited Protected Contract means a written agreement, contract or permit in which: 

A. The Member assumes the Tort Liability of another to pay damages because of 
Bodily Injury or Property Damage to a third party in one of the following:   

(i) Easements or License Agreements; 

(ii) Leases of Real or Personal Property; 

(iii) Encroachment Permits;  

(iv) Special Events Sponsored by the Member; or 

(v) Use of Facilities, Equipment, real or personal property by the Member; or 

B. The Member assumes the Tort Liability of another to pay damages because of 
Bodily Injury or Property Damage to a third party for an activity not named in 
paragraph A. directly above, and upon its review of the agreement, Authority staff 
has determined at its sole discretion that any risks assumed in the agreement do not 
significantly increase the Member’s risk exposure, and an Evidence of Coverage 
letter has been issued by the Authority; or 

C. The Member is obligated to provide evidence of coverage for a third party to 
participate in a funding program administered by another government or evidence of 
coverage required by bond indentures entered into by the Member if Authority 
staff has determined in its sole discretion that any risks assumed in the agreement do 
not significantly increase the Member’s risk exposure, and an Evidence of 
Coverage letter has been issued by the Authority; 

and which is entered into prior to the Bodily Injury or Property Damage for which a 
Claim is made. 

A Limited Protected Contract does not include any part of any contract or agreement 
that indemnifies any person or organization for injury or damages caused by the sole 
negligence of such person or organization, or that cannot be included in a Protected 
Contract. 

A Limited Protected Contract also does not include any part of a contract or agreement 
that indemnifies the owner or operator of a Railroad. 

 

Protected Party means: 

A. The Member named on the Cover Page; 

B. Persons who are, or were, elected or appointed officials or Employees of the 
Member, whether or not compensated, while acting within the scope of their duties 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 11 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

or employment as such, including while acting on outside committees, 
commissions, or boards at the direction of the Member, except that the protection 
so provided does not apply to Bodily Injury to another official or employee of the 
Member in the course of and arising out of his or her duties to or employment by 
the same Member;   

C. Any nonprofit California corporation or unincorporated association under written 
contract, approved by the Member’s governing board or council, to perform 
specified functions under the Member’s direction and control.  The corporation or 
unincorporated association is a Protected Party only for Occurrences arising out 
of the functions described in the contract.  For the purposes of this section, direction 
and control means the authority of the Member to be involved in decision making 
and to overturn decisions;   

D. Any person or entity identified as an additional Protected Party in a letter 
certifying such additional Protected Party status issued by the Authority, for  
Bodily Injury or Property Damage during the time period identified in the letter; 
if a particular activity is identified in the letter, the person or entity is a Protected 
Party only for Occurrences arising out of the described activity.  Additional 
Protected Party status will apply only where required by the terms of a written 
agreement. 

E. Any person while using an Automobile owned, hired, or leased by a Member, and 
any person or organization legally responsible for the use thereof, provided the use 
is with the express permission of the Member, and only for Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage.  This protection does not apply to: 

(i) Any person or organization, or any agent or employee thereof, engaged in 
selling, repairing, servicing, delivering, testing, road testing, parking or 
storing, Automobiles, with respect to any Occurrence arising out of any such 
occupation or activity;  

(ii) With respect to any hired automobile, to the owner or a lessee thereof, other 
than the Member, or to any agent or employee of such owner or lessee; or 

(iii) Any person or organization or to any agent or employee thereof engaged in a 
business of operating buses or other Automobiles for the transport of 
members of the public unless that business is owned by the Member and 
operated by its employees.   

(This Memorandum does not provide Underinsured or Uninsured Motorist 
coverage.); or  

F. The Authority, its officers and employees while acting in the course and scope of 
their duties or employment.   

No person or entity is a Protected Party with respect to the conduct of any current or 
past partnership, joint venture or joint powers authority (including any separate entity 
created pursuant to a joint powers agreement).  However, for any person who is an 
official or Employee of a Member, who participates in the activities of a partnership, 
joint venture, or joint powers authority and is acting for or on behalf of the Member at 
the time of the Occurrence, protection is afforded by this Memorandum.  Such 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 12 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

coverage shall be in excess of, and shall not contribute with, any collectible insurance, 
self-insurance or other coverage provided to the other joint powers authority, agency or 
entity.       

Protection Period means the time period shown on the Cover Page of this 
Memorandum. 

Public Officials Errors and Omissions means any act, error, omission, misstatement, 
misleading statement, neglect, or breach of duty by any Protected Party in the discharge 
of that individual’s duties for the Member; or any matter claimed against any Protected 
Party solely by reason of the individual being or having been an employee of the 
Member.  Public Officials Errors and Omissions does not include Bodily Injury, 
Property Damage, Personal Injury, Broadcast/Publication Injury, or Employment 
Practices Injury. 

Quiet Zone means a segment of a rail line, within which is situated one or a number of 
consecutive public highway-rail crossings at which locomotive horns are not routinely 
sounded.  Quiet Zone includes partial quiet zone, a segment of a rail line within which is 
situated one or a number of consecutive public highway-rail grade crossings at which 
locomotive horns are not routinely sounded for a specified period of time during the 
evening and/or nighttime hours.  Quiet Zone also includes all vehicle or pedestrian 
crossings wherein localized or “wayside” horns have been installed at the crossing in lieu 
of a locomotive sounding its horn.   

Radioactive Contamination Injury means Bodily Injury or Property Damage caused 
by or arising from ionizing radiations or contamination by radioactive material.  

Railroad means a commercial railway as described by the California Public Utilities 
Code, Section 229.  Railroad includes street railroad as described by the California 
Public Utilities Code, Section 231.  Railroad does not include amusement railroad rides 
that do not cross public streets. 

Suit means a civil proceeding in which a Protected Party is named as a defendant or 
cross defendant, or an arbitration proceeding or alternative-dispute resolution proceeding 
to which a Protected Party submits with the Authority’s written consent. 

Termination for Cause means dismissal, discharge, termination of employment, or 
failure to renew a contract for the reasons stated in 29 USC §1111 of the Employee 
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.  This includes ending the employment of a City 
Manager because the City Manager has been convicted of robbery, bribery, extortion, 
embezzlement, fraud, grand larceny, burglary, arson, a felony violation of a state or 
federal law regulating a controlled substance (felony drug conviction), murder, rape, 
kidnapping, perjury, assault with intent to kill, or any felony involving abuse or misuse of 
the City Manager’s position to obtain illegal personal gain. 

Tort Liability means civil liability that would be imposed by law in the absence of any 
agreement or contract. 

Unemployment Protection Payment means a payment that shall be paid once a month, 
for a time period not to exceed six months (the “Payment Period”) following the Waiting 
Period, that shall equal the amount of the City Manager’s salary at the time of the 
termination of employment Occurrence plus payment of the Medical Benefit less any 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 13 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

amount of compensation earned, while self-employed or as an employee, or any other 
payment received as a result of the Occurrence during the Payment Period. 

“Salary,” for purposes of this Unemployment Protection Payment, means the 
regular monthly compensation of the City Manager, whether paid monthly, bi-
weekly, semi-monthly, or otherwise, and does not include Benefits, bonuses, car 
allowances, expenses, or other allowances, contributions to the Public Employees 
Retirement System or any deferred compensation payments made on behalf of the 
City Manager by the Protected Party. 

Waiting Period means a period of time after the termination of employment Occurrence 
equal to the greater of (1) six months or (2) the number of months of salary received by 
the City Manager as a severance payment from the Member. 

Waiver means a full and complete relinquishment by a City Manager of any and all 
rights to sue a Protected Party for any Benefit, compensation, injury, or damages, 
known or unknown, past, present or future, arising out of the employment of, termination 
of the employment of, or failure to employ the City Manager.  The Waiver must be 
signed and returned to the Authority within 60 days following the termination of 
employment. 

Watercraft means a vessel, more than 25 feet in length, designed to transport persons or 
property in, on, or through water. 

 

4. EXCLUSIONS 

This Memorandum, including any obligation to defend or to pay Defense Costs, does 
not apply to: 

A. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense caused by or 
arising out of the ownership, maintenance, use or operation of any Watercraft, 
Aircraft, or Airport or any air show events sponsored or controlled by the 
Protected Party or conducted on property owned by the Protected Party.  
Protection does apply to use of an Aircraft or Watercraft, if the Aircraft or 
Watercraft is not owned in whole or in part by the Member and the Member 
exercises no part in the servicing or maintenance of the Aircraft or Watercraft.  
However, this limited protection does not apply to: 

(i) Loss, loss of use of, or damage to the Aircraft or Watercraft; or 

(ii) Use of any Aircraft or Watercraft for hire or reward. 

         (iii)    Public Officials Errors and Omissions coverage 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 14 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

B. Any Claim, Suit, obligation or alleged obligation for which a Protected Party or 
any insurance company as his/her/its insurer may be held liable under any workers’ 
compensation, unemployment compensation or disability benefits law, or under any 
similar law. 

C. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense for Bodily Injury 
to: 

(i) An employee of the Protected Party arising out of and in the course of 
employment by the Protected Party; or 

(ii) The spouse, child, parent, brother, or sister of that employee as a consequence 
of paragraph (i) above. 

This Exclusion C. applies whether the Protected Party may be liable as an 
employer or in any other capacity, and to any obligation to share damages with or 
repay someone else who must pay damages because of the injury.  However, this 
exclusion does not apply to liability assumed in a Protected Contract or Limited 
Protected Contract.  

D. Injury to or destruction of: 

(i) Property owned by the Protected Party; 

(ii) Property rented to or leased to the Protected Party where it has assumed 
liability under any contract for damage to or destruction of such property 
unless the Protected Party would have been liable in the absence of such 
assumption of liability; or  

(iii) Property in the care, custody, or control of any Protected Party.  

E. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense caused by, arising 
out of or in any way connected with the operation of the principles of eminent 
domain, condemnation proceedings, or inverse condemnation, by whatever name 
called, whether such liability accrues directly against the Protected Party or by 
virtue of any agreement entered into by or on behalf of the Protected Party.  This 
Exclusion E. shall not apply to liability, loss, cost or expense arising from property 
damage caused by earth movement, subsidence of land, flooding not caused by the 
failure of a Dam or Levee, or sewer backup, even though a legal theory upon which 
a claimant seeks recovery is the principle of inverse condemnation.  This Exclusion 
E shall not apply when the claim or suit alleges damages arising out of temporary 
physical measures taken by the Member for public safety reasons in an effort to 
prevent or reduce a loss. 

F. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense arising out of the 
actual, alleged or threatened discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration, release, 
escape, or any other forms of exposure to or the presence of Pollutants/Hazardous 
Materials including any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost or 
expense directly or indirectly caused by or arising out of any: 

(i) Request, demand, or order that any Protected Party or others test for, 
monitor, clean up, remove, contain, treat, detoxify, or neutralize, or in any 
way respond to, or assess the effects of Pollutants/Hazardous Materials; 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 15 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

(ii) Claim or Suit by or on behalf of a governmental authority or any other entity 
or person for costs of or damages because of testing for, monitoring, cleaning 
up, removing, containing, treating, detoxifying, or neutralizing, or in any way 
responding to, or assessing the effects of Pollutants/Hazardous Materials; or 

(iii) Actions or steps taken to mitigate damages or to relocate persons, property or 
business as a result of Pollutants/Hazardous Materials.  

 

EXCEPTION TO EXCLUSION, PROTECTION FOR CERTAIN ACCIDENTAL 
POLLUTION INJURIES.  However this Exclusion F. does not apply to Bodily 
Injury or Property Damage arising out of or caused by any actual, alleged or 
threatened discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration, release or escape of 
Pollutants/Hazardous Materials if: 

(i) It was directly caused by Hostile Fire, explosion, lightning, windstorm, 
vandalism or malicious mischief or collision, overturning or upset of a motor 
vehicle or railroad vehicle; and  

(ii) It was accidental and was neither expected nor intended by the Protected 
Party; and 

(iii) It was instantaneous and was demonstrable as having commenced at a specific 
time and date during the term of this Memorandum; and 

(iv) Its commencement became known to the Protected Party within seven days; 
and 

(v) Its commencement was reported in writing to the Authority within twenty 
days of becoming known to the Protected Party; and 

(vi) Reasonable efforts were expended by the Protected Party to correct or 
terminate the discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration, release, or escape of 
Pollutants/Hazardous Materials. 

Nothing contained in this EXCEPTION TO EXCLUSION, PROTECTION FOR 
CERTAIN ACCIDENTAL POLLUTION INJURIES shall operate to provide any 
protection or obligation to defend or pay Defense Costs with respect to: 

(i) Any site or location used by others on the Protected Party’s behalf for the 
handling, storage, disposal, dumping, processing, or treatment of waste 
material.  This exclusion applies whether or not the action by others was 
known to the Protected Party; 

(ii) Any clean-up costs mandated by the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) and any similar laws 
or statutes;  

(iii) Clean up, removal, containment, treatment, detoxification or neutralization of 
Pollutants/Hazardous Materials situated on premises the Protected Party 
currently owns, rents or occupies; or 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 16 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

(iv) Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense based upon 
or arising out of Personal Injury or Public Officials Errors and Omissions. 

G. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense directly or 
indirectly based on or arising out of the hazardous properties of Nuclear Material. 
However, this exclusion does not apply to Radioactive Contamination Injury.  

H. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense directly or 
indirectly caused by any complete or partial failure, interruption or surge in the 
supply of water, electrical power, gas or fuel, unless such failure, interruption or 
surge results from sudden and accidental physical destruction of tangible property 
which is caused by the Protected Party. 

I. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense arising out of the 
partial or complete structural failure of a Dam or Levee. 

J. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense caused by, or 
arising out of, or in connection with the operation of any hospital, clinic (including a 
mobile clinic), or established health-care facility owned or operated by the 
Protected Party, but protection does apply to liability arising out of the rendering 
of emergency medical aid by paramedics, emergency medical technicians, or other 
Protected Parties who are not acting in the course of their employment by a 
hospital, clinic, or established health-care facility.  Protection also applies for 
liability arising out of the operation of any hospital, clinic (including a mobile 
clinic) or established health care facility, owned and operated by the Protected 
Party for animal care and control purposes. 

K. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense caused by or 
arising out of or in connection with: 

(i) the ownership, maintenance, use, or operation by the Protected Party of any  
Railroad; or 

(ii) the establishment, designation, or implementation of a Quiet Zone. 

L.  Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense caused by, based 
upon or arising out of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, 
Public Law 93-406, or any amendment or addition thereto, or any statute or 
common law rule which imposes fiduciary duties and responsibilities with respect to 
employee benefits or retirement plans; however this exclusion does not apply to 
liability protected under Employee Benefit Administration Liability.  

M. Any Claim, Suit, liability, or alleged liability for punitive or exemplary damages or 
fines or other damages imposed primarily for the sake of example and by way of 
punishing the Protected Party, including liability of a Member to defend or pay 
damages where the governing body thereof has elected to provide a defense or pay 
damages for a Claim, action or judgment for punitive or exemplary damages. 

N. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense caused by the 
intentional conduct of a Protected Party with willful and conscious disregard of the 
rights or safety of other or with malice.  However, where the Protected Party did 
not authorize, ratify, participate in, consent to or have knowledge of such conduct 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 17 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

by its past or present Employee, elected or appointed official or volunteer and the 
claim against the Protected Party is based solely on its vicarious liability arising 
from its relationship with such Employee, elected or appointed official or volunteer, 
this exclusion does not apply to that Protected Party. 

O. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense caused by or 
arising out of any violation of state or federal antitrust or restraint-of-trade laws.   

P. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense arising out of:  

(i) the adoption or administration of any ordinance, resolution or regulation; or 

(ii) the approval or disapproval of any land-use entitlement including but not 
limited to general plan amendments, zoning amendments, conditional-use 
permits, tract maps, development agreements, owner-participation 
agreements, or disposition-and-development agreements; or  

(iii) the approval or disapproval of any rent control ordinance, outdoor advertising 
ordinance, or adult bookstore ordinance; or 

(iv) the approval or disapproval of the operation of a medical marijuana 
dispensary, any ordinances governing that activity and any and all 
enforcement efforts.  

This exclusion shall not apply to claims of neglect or failure to enforce any law.    

Q. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense including Tort 
Liability: 

(i) Arising out of or as a consequence of an actual or alleged breach of any 
contract or agreement; 

(ii) For any amount actually or allegedly due under the terms of any contract or 
agreement; or 

(iii) Arising out of or as a consequence of the failure, refusal, or inability of a 
Protected Party or anyone acting on behalf of a Protected Party to enter 
into or renew any contract or agreement. 

However, this Exclusion P. shall not apply to Tort Liability imposed by law for 
Damages caused by, arising out of, or as a consequence of failure or delay by a 
Protected Party or anyone acting on behalf of a Protected Party to fully perform 
any duties or obligations under any contract or agreement.  

As used in this Exclusion P., the term “contract or agreement” shall include but not 
be limited to a Protected Contract or Limited Protected Contract. 

R. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense for declaratory, 
injunctive, equitable or other relief, writs of mandate or prohibition or other 
prerogative writs, or other relief not seeking Damages.  This includes any expense 
or cost incurred by a Protected Party arising from the cost of reasonable 
accommodation of any disabled person, including any Employee. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 18 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

S. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense for Personal 
Injury or Broadcast/Publication Injury directly or indirectly caused by or arising 
out of any: 

(i) Oral or written publication of material, if done by or at the direction of the 
Protected Party with knowledge of its falsity; 

(ii) Oral or written publication of material whose first publication took place 
before the beginning of the Protection Period; or 

(iii) Act, omission, or offense committed by a Protected Party with actual malice. 

T. Any liability for which the Protected Party is obligated to pay damages by reason 
of liability assumed in a contract or agreement. This Exclusion does not apply to 
liability for Bodily Injury or Property Damage: 

(i) Assumed in a contract or agreement that is a Protected Contract or Limited 
Protected Contract; or 

(ii) That the Protected Party would have independent of a written contract or 
agreement. 

U. Any Claim or Suit by a Member against a Protected Party, except that this 
section shall not apply to a Claim or Suit brought against the Authority. 

V. Any Claim or Suit by a Member against another Member. 

W. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense based upon or 
arising out of: 

(i) Loss of, loss of use of, injury to, destruction of, diminution of value of, 
disappearance of, or costs of recovery of any money or securities, or any 
financial loss or default;  

(ii) Refunds of taxes, fees, or assessments;  

(iii) The issuance, management of proceeds or repayment of bonds, notes or other 
debt instruments by any Member or any agent acting on behalf of such 
Member; or 

(iv) The purchase, transfer, or sale of any securities by any Member or agent 
acting on behalf of such Member. 

X. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense for Public 
Officials Errors and Omissions Liability based upon or arising out of: 

(i) Liability of any Protected Party arising out of estimates of probable costs or 
cost estimates being exceeded or for faulty preparation of bid specifications or 
plans including liability for mechanic’s lien claims, stop notice claims, change 
order claims, site differential claims, or similar claims for the value of services 
or materials provided; this exclusion extends to such claims, however 
denominated, including claims of breach of oral or written contract, third 
party beneficiary claims, quantum meruit claims, and/or open account claims; 

(ii) Any Protected Party obtaining remuneration or financial gain to which the 
Protected Party is or was not legally entitled;  

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 19 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

(iii) Liability assumed by a Protected Party in a contract or agreement, but this 
exclusion does not apply to liability for Damages that the Protected Party 
would have independent of the contract or agreement; or  

(iv) Willful violation of penal code or ordinance committed by or with the 
knowledge or consent of any Protected Party.   

Y. Under Employment Practices Injury, any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, 
loss, cost, or expense that: 

(i) Constitutes benefits due or to become due or the equivalent value of such 
benefits, including but not limited to perquisites, fringe benefits, payments in 
connection with an employee benefits plan, or any other payment other than 
salary or wages to or for the benefit of an Employee arising out of the 
employment relationship; 

(ii) Is representative of back salary either unpaid in whole or part or paid at an 
improper rate to an Employee by the Member; 

(iii) Is based upon, arises from, or is in consequence of the employment 
reinstatement of the claimant by the Member or the continued employment of 
the claimant; 

(iv) Is based upon, arises from, or is a consequence of an Occurrence that began 
prior to this Memorandum’s Protection Period; 

(v) Constitutes front pay, future damages or other future economic relief or the 
equivalent thereof, if the Member is ordered to reinstate the Employee 
pursuant to a judgment or other final adjudication, but fails to do so; or 

(vi) Is based upon, arises from or is in consequence of an actual or alleged 
violation of the responsibilities, obligations or duties imposed by the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, the Fair Labor Standards 
Act, the National Labor Relations Act, the Worker Adjustment and Retraining 
Notification Act, the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 
1985, the Occupational Safety and Health Act, rules or regulations 
promulgated there under and amendments thereto or similar provisions of any 
federal, state, or local statutory law or common law. 

However, with respect to the exclusions listed in items (i) through (vi) immediately 
above, no fact pertaining to or knowledge possessed by any Protected Party shall 
be imputed to any other Protected Party to determine if protection is available 
under this Memorandum.   

Z. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense for Employee 
Benefit Administration Liability based upon or arising out of: 

(i) Any dishonest, fraudulent, criminal or malicious act, libel, slander, 
discrimination, or humiliation; 

(ii) Failure of performance of contract by an insurer; 

(iii) Failure of any investment plan to perform as represented by a Protected 
Party; 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 20 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

(iv) Advice given by a Protected Party to an Employee to participate or not 
participate in subscription plans; or 

(v) The inability of any Employee Benefits Program to meet its obligations due 
to insolvency or inadequacy of funding.   

AA. Any Claim, Suit, liability, alleged liability, loss, cost, or expense for termination of 
a City Manager’s employment based upon or arising out of: 

(i) Termination for Cause;  

(ii) Lack of a duly executed Waiver; or 

(iii) Lack of a duly executed Certification. 

 

5. CONDITIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. Inspection and Audit 

The Authority shall be permitted but not obligated to inspect the Protected Party’s 
property and operations at any time.  Neither the Authority’s right to make inspections 
nor the making thereof nor any report hereon shall constitute an undertaking, on behalf of 
or for the benefit of the Protected Party or others, to determine or warrant that such 
property or operations are safe or healthful, or are in compliance with any law, rule or 
regulations.  The Authority may examine and audit the Protected Party’s books and 
records at any time during the Protection Period and extensions thereof and within three 
years after the final termination of this Program, as far as they relate to the subject 
matter of this Memorandum. 

B. Severability of Interest 

The term Protected Party is used severally and not collectively, and the protection 
afforded applies to each Protected Party against whom a Claim is made as if a separate 
Memorandum were issued to it, but the inclusion herein of more than one Protected 
Party shall not operate to increase the per Member Protection Limit. 

C. Protected Party’s Duties in the Event of Occurrence, Claim or Suit 

(i) In the event of any Occurrence, written notice containing particulars 
sufficient to identify the Protected Party and also reasonably obtainable 
information with respect to the time, place, and circumstances thereof, and the 
names and addresses of the injured and of available witnesses, shall be given 
by or for the Protected Party to the Authority’s Claims Administrator as 
soon as practicable. 

(ii) If a Claim is made against a Protected Party, the Protected Party shall 
immediately forward to the Authority’s Claims Administrator every demand, 
notice, summons or other process received by the Protected Party or the 
Protected Party’s representative. 

(iii) The Authority’s Claims Administrator will review the Claim, undertake 
whatever investigation is indicated, and take appropriate action, depending on 
the circumstances.  A Claim may be returned to claimant as “insufficient,” if 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 21 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

it does not contain minimum and essential information about the incident or 
the identity of the claimant.  A Claim may also be returned as “late,” if the 
prescribed time for filing has been exceeded.  The Claims Administrator may 
request that the Member reject the Claim, or take no action until further 
notice, or such actions may be taken by the Claims Administrator if claims 
handling authority has been delegated to the Authority by the Member. 

(iv) The Protected Party shall cooperate with the Authority and, upon the 
Authority’s request, assist in making settlements, in the conduct of Suits, and 
in enforcing any right of contribution or indemnity against any person or 
organization who may be liable to the Protected Party because of injury or 
damage with respect to which protection, including any Defense obligation, is 
afforded under this Memorandum; and the Protected Party shall not, except 
at the Protected Party’s own cost, voluntarily make any payment, assume 
any obligation or incur any expense.  No Claim shall be settled without the 
prior written consent of the Authority, and the Authority shall not be 
required to contribute to any settlement to which it has not consented. 

D. Other Protection 

If collectible insurance or any other coverage or protection with any insurer, any 
permissibly self-insured general employer, joint powers insurance authority or any other 
source is available to the Protected Party covering a loss also protected hereunder 
(whether on a primary, excess or contingent basis), the protection hereunder (including 
any Defense obligation) shall be in excess of, and shall not contribute with, such 
insurance or other coverage or protection, provided that this clause does not apply with 
respect to any insurance purchased by a Protected Party specifically to be in excess of 
this Memorandum.  Under no circumstances shall the protection afforded by this 
Program be considered primary, pro rata, concurrent or co-existent with such insurance, 
coverage, or other protection, unless agreed to by the Member through a written 
agreement approved by the Authority through the issuance of an evidence of coverage 
letter prior to a loss.  

E. Termination or Amendment 

This Memorandum may be terminated or amended at any time in accordance with the 
Joint Powers Agreement and Bylaws of the Authority.  The Executive Committee may 
adopt exclusions of coverage, copayments or deductibles for actions or omissions of a  
Member that are deemed to be a risk to the program.  Such exclusions, copayments or 
deductibles may be imposed immediately upon adoption by the Executive Committee or 
as a consequence of a Member’s failure to adhere to an approved Performance 
Improvement Plan. 

F. Changes 

Notice to any agent or knowledge possessed by any agent of the Authority or by any 
other person shall not effect a waiver of or a change in any part of this Memorandum, 
nor shall the terms of this Memorandum be waived or changed, except by a written 
addendum issued by the Authority to form a part of this Memorandum. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 22 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

G. Subrogation 

The Authority shall reserve the right to subrogate for any payments made hereunder and 
to assume the Protected Party’s recovery rights.  The Protected Party shall do nothing 
after loss to prejudice such rights and shall do everything necessary to secure such rights.  
The Protected Party may waive subrogation rights, but only through written agreement 
executed before the Occurrence giving rise to the loss.  The Authority shall have 
standing to seek subrogation recovery in its own name or in the name of the Protected 
Party, and the Protected Party shall cooperate with and assist the Authority in pursuing 
such recovery, including assigning its right to recover subrogated amounts, and if 
necessary executing a written agreement to effect such assignment.  Any amount so 
recovered shall be apportioned as follows: 

(i) The Authority shall be reimbursed to the extent of all payment under this 
Memorandum.  Any remaining balance shall be applied to reimburse the 
Protected Party; 

(ii) The expenses of such recovery proceedings shall be apportioned in the ratio of 
respective recoveries.  If there is no recovery in proceedings conducted solely by 
the Authority, the Authority shall bear the expenses thereof. 

H. Assignment 

Assignment of interest under this Memorandum shall not bind the Authority until its 
consent is endorsed hereon; if, however, the Member shall be adjudged bankrupt or 
insolvent, such protection and Defense obligations as are afforded by this Memorandum 
shall apply (a) to Member’s legal representative, as the Member, but only while acting 
within the scope of said representative’s duties as such, and (b) with respect to the 
property of the Member, to the person having proper temporary custody thereof, as a 
Protected Party, but only until the appointment and qualification of a legal 
representative. 

I. Joint Powers Agreement 

The provisions of this Memorandum are subject to and subordinate to the terms and 
provisions of the Agreement creating the Authority, and in the event of any conflict 
between the terms and provisions of said Agreement and this Memorandum, the terms 
and provisions of the Agreement shall control. 

J. Appeal of Disputes 

No party is entitled to appeal or arbitrate claims under this Memorandum other than the 
Member.  Specifically, Employees are not intended to be third party beneficiaries of this 
agreement and shall have no right to bring an action against the Authority for a 
declaration of rights to protection under this Memorandum.  The sole remedy of any 
Employee shall be the Employee’s right to defense or indemnity against the employing 
Member under the provisions of the California Government Code.   

Any disputes concerning coverage, protection, Defense obligations, or procedures of the 
Program, as interpreted by the Authority’s staff, shall be appealed to the Authority’s 
Executive Committee in accordance with the following procedures. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 23 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

(i) A written notice that a Claim is not covered by the Memorandum will 
normally be provided to the Member by the Claims Administrator.  A 
Member may request any determination of a lack of coverage made by the 
Claims Administrator to be reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer.  Such a 
request shall be in writing and must be made within 90 days of the date of the 
written notice from the Claims Administrator. 

(ii) Upon request, the Chief Executive Officer shall review a determination of a 
lack of coverage made by the Claims Administrator or Authority staff and 
shall send to the Member a written determination of coverage. 

(iii) If a Member disagrees with the coverage determination by the Chief 
Executive Officer, the Member may appeal the decision to the Appeals 
Committee.  The Appeals Committee consists of the Executive Committee 
and the chairs of the Managers and Finance Officers Committees.  Appeals 
must be in writing within 90 days of the date of the Chief Executive Officer's 
written decision.  The appeal request must state why the Member disagrees 
with the denial, and the Member should present any information that may 
have a bearing on the ultimate determination of coverage. 

(iv) The appeal request shall be presented by Authority staff to the Appeals 
Committee, on a regularly scheduled Executive Committee meeting day, 
allowing time for sufficient review and agenda deadlines.  Staff shall notify 
the Member in advance of the meeting at which its appeal will be presented. 

(v) If the Member would like to personally address the Appeals Committee, the 
Member or the Member’s representative may attend the meeting and speak 
to the issue. 

(vi) The Appeals Committee may refer the appeal to the Coverage Committee and 
consider the recommendation of the Coverage Committee during its 
deliberation on the appeal.  The Appeals Committee’s decision is final.  
Authority staff will notify the Member of the Appeals Committee’s decision 
in writing. 

(vii) Following a final determination regarding a Claim, consideration of the 
decision may be reopened at the request of the Member if circumstances 
change as follows:  (1) a new and distinct Claim arising out of the prior 
Occurrence is presented to the Member, or (2) new and distinct causes of 
action are added to the Claim.  If the new Claim or causes of action are 
reasonably thought by the Member to be covered, the Appeals Committee 
will reconsider the issue, in accordance with the procedure in this paragraph 
J., upon request.  Any request for such reconsideration must be in writing 
within 90 days of the notice to the Member of the new Claim or cause of 
action. 

 
If a Member disputes a coverage issue relating to the application or scope of an 
exclusion, then, during the course of the administrative and arbitration proceedings 
provided herein, only upon the request of the Member, the Authority shall defend the 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 24 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

Claim against the Member and have the right to control any settlement of that Claim, 
subject to the right of the Authority to recover from the Member any amounts paid out 
by the Authority for such defense or settlement which are finally determined by the 
Appeals Committee, or as a result of the Binding Arbitration Process, not to be owed by 
the Authority under the Program.  If the Member does not elect to request such a 
defense, Defense Costs incurred during the coverage appeal shall be at the sole cost and 
expense of the Member.    

K. Arbitration 

If the Member has followed the coverage Appeals Procedure outlined in 5.J. Appeal of 
Disputes and disagrees with the final determination of the Appeals Committee, the 
Member may request consideration of the coverage issue through the Authority’s 
Binding Arbitration Process. 

The Arbitration process shall be as follows: 

(i) Following a decision by the Appeals Committee, the appealing Member shall 
notify the Chief Executive Officer in writing, within 30 days of the Appeals 
Committee’s final decision, that it wishes to participate in Binding Arbitration 
and shall submit a non-refundable $1,000 arbitration appeal fee.  The written 
notice shall specify the grounds for the arbitration. 

(ii) Following payment of the arbitration appeals fee, the name of each Member, 
other than the appealing Member and the Members represented on the 
Appeals Committee, shall be placed in an unmarked envelope.  Each envelope 
shall be placed in a box and eleven envelopes shall be drawn by the Chief 
Executive Officer.  A representative of the appealing Member may be present 
at the drawing. 

(iii) The City Managers of the eleven Members shall be the pool of potential 
arbitrators.  The eleven Members and the names of their City Managers shall 
be given in writing to the appealing Member. 

(iv) The appealing Member shall have the right to strike two or less names from 
the pool for any reason which shall not be disclosed.  The Authority shall 
have the right to strike two or less names from the pool for any reason which 
shall not be disclosed.  The appealing Member and the Authority must strike 
names within five business days of the drawing.  The right of either party to 
strike names shall lapse at 5:00 PM on the fifth day following the drawing.  
Notice of names stricken by either party shall be given in writing to the other 
party prior to 5:00 PM on the fifth day following the drawing. 

(v) The remaining City Managers shall be contacted by the Chief Executive 
Officer to determine their willingness to serve on the arbitration panel.  If 
more than five are willing to serve, each name shall be placed in an unmarked 
envelope, put in a box, and the Chief Executive Officer shall draw five 
envelopes from the box.  The individuals whose names are drawn shall be the 
arbitration panel and they shall be disclosed in writing to the appealing 
Member. 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



Memorandum of Liability Coverage Page 25 of 25 July 1, 2012 – July 1, 2013 

(vi) If only five are willing to serve, they shall be the arbitration panel. 

(vii) If fewer than five are willing to serve, the name of each member not drawn in 
the previous selection drawing shall be placed in an unmarked envelope, put 
in a box, and four envelopes shall be drawn for each arbitration panel position 
needed to have a five-member panel.  A representative of the appealing 
Member may be present at the drawing.  The names drawn shall be disclosed 
to the appealing Member who may reject, for any reason which shall not be 
disclosed, one name for each four names drawn.  The Authority may also 
reject one name for each four names drawn and shall not disclose the reason.  
Names rejected by the appealing Member and the Authority must be rejected 
within 48-hours of the drawing.  The right to reject names shall lapse 48-hours 
following the drawing. 

(viii) The City Managers of the Members remaining shall be contacted by the 
Chief Executive Officer to determine their willingness to serve on the 
arbitration panel.  The names of those willing to serve shall be placed in 
unmarked envelopes, put in a box, and the number necessary to fill out the 
arbitration panel shall be drawn by the Chief Executive Officer and disclosed 
in writing to the appealing Member.  A representative of the appealing 
Member may be present at the drawing. 

(ix) This process shall be repeated until five members are obtained for the 
arbitration panel. 

(x) The arbitration panel members shall be compensated at the rate of $125 per 
half-day or portion thereof.  If a panel member is required to stay away from 
home overnight, lodging shall be paid by the Authority.  Necessary meals 
shall be provided for all panel members.  Mileage costs shall be reimbursed by 
the Authority at its standard rate. 

(xi) The cost of the arbitration panel shall be borne by the Authority.  The cost of 
presentation by the appealing Member, including preparation, exhibits, 
attorneys, and all other costs of the Member shall be paid by the Member. 

(xii) The arbitration panel may request legal counsel that shall be selected by the 
Chief Executive Officer and paid for by the Authority.  Legal counsel shall 
not be the counsel for the Authority that has advised the staff and Executive 
Committee.  However, counsel for the Authority may participate in or make 
the presentation to the arbitration panel on behalf of the Authority, as 
requested by the Chief Executive Officer. 

(xiii) The parties to the arbitration shall not be governed by formal rules of 
evidence. 

(xiv) The arbitration panel’s decision shall be final and binding on the Member and 
the Authority.  Decisions of the arbitration panel shall be by majority vote. 

(xv) The decision of the arbitration panel shall be written and shall govern the 
issue decided but may be referred to by the Authority and future arbitration 
panels for precedent.

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 11 - ATTACHMENT C




